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The story of Nulsen began in the 1950’s at a 
time when parents of children with severe 
disabilities had nowhere to turn. 

People with severe disabilities were classed 
as ‘mentally incurable’, ‘mentally retarded’, or 
‘idiots’. There was a firm belief among 
professionals as well as among the general 
community that nothing constructive could 
be done for such people and that kind and 
competent custodial care was the best 
possible option. 

Even such minimal care was not available in 
Western Australia in the early 1950’s. The only 
alternative offered to parents unable to cope 
with the strain of caring for a member of the 
family, who demanded 24 hour attention, 
was the Claremont Mental Hospital. 

Through the efforts of Frank Anderson, Bill 
Burns and Lloyd Summerton the 
establishment of the Mentally Incurable 
Children’s Association came into being; 
today known as Nulsen. 

The period from the mid 1950’s to the 
1990’s saw a dramatic change in attitudes 
to and treatment of people with severe 
intellectual disabilities in Western Australia, 
and a trend away from the provision of 
simple custodial care. 

This change began in the 1960’s within the 
ranks of professionals working with such 
people, spread to bureaucrats and 
government functionaries administering 
health services, and gradually gained 
acceptance in the community at large. 

During this period attitudes and 
expectations changed completely. People 
who would have been classified as ‘mentally 
incurable’ and fit only for a custodial 
institution were moving into homes in small 
groups and making decisions about many 
aspects of their own lives. They were being 
encouraged to take part in community 
leisure programs, to develop networks of 
friends and to enjoy as full and rewarding 
lifestyle as their disabilities permitted and 
with greater support. 

The history of Nulsen illustrates the process 
by which this remarkable change took place. 
The Association was set up in the heyday of 
custodial care, but eventually altered its focus 
and rode the crest of change to become an 
acknowledged leader in Australia in the field 
of supporting people with severe disabilities. 

Board of Directors
Aart Plug - Chair 
Fiona Grealish - Vice Chair 
Richard Curry - Vice Chair 
Viv Huntsman 
Max Kousins 
Joe Lamhut 
Ken Palmer 
Mariani Peck 
Eric Goddard - Board Advisor 
Gordon Trewern - Ex officio 
Graham Holman - Ex officio

Governance Committee
Ken Palmer - Chair 
Richard Curry 
Aart Plug 
Gordon Trewern 
Vacancy - external

Strategic Planning Committee
Richard Curry - Chair 
Aart Plug 
Gordon Trewern 
Ken Palmer 
Erin Knox 
Verena Marshall 
Adam Smith

Patron
Tina Altieri

Youth Patrons
Promoting the Association to the 
youth of today are eleven Year 11 
students from Hale School:
Adam Birman  
Robert Ferritto  
Liam O'Shea  
Preston Sudlow 

The Youth Patrons are supported 
by the following Committee 
Members 
Ben Joseph  
Jack Murray  
Jackson Peos  
Ethan Schrum  
Jake Willet  
Luke Yeo  
Jack Young 

Finance Sub-Committee
Joe Lamhut - Chair 
Greg Dowbnia 
Aart Plug 
Eric Goddard 
Max Kousins 
Graham Holman 
Gordon Trewern 
Adam Smith

Our mission is to enable people with disabilities to 
achieve and maintain a valued quality of life as 
part of an accepting community.

Founding Members from left, Mr William Robert Burns 
President, Mr Francis John Anderson Secretary, Mr 
George John Summerton Treasurer.

About Nulsen

Committee Members

Nulsen provides support to people with a 
range of disabilities which includes 
intellectual, physical and acquired brain 
injuries which fall under the following 
service delivery areas;

Nulsen Connect  
is the overarching program that is  
absorbed into every department of the 
Association; it binds our culture, our 
residents and staff together.  

Nulsen Life
represents Nulsen’s accommodation 
program; 

Nulsen Support
represents administrative functions; 

Nulsen Health
relates to Clinical and Nursing services 
provided; 

Nulsen Training
represents Nulsen’s training roles and 
functions; and 

Nulsen Community
our alternative to employment program, 
management of Blue Gum Recreation 
Centre, the Mobile Education Unit and our 
Youth Patron Program. 

Services provided throughout the Perth 
metropolitan area include; 

•	 Accommodation	services	 
•	 Therapy	&	Nursing	 
•	 Recreation	 
•	 Alternatives	to	Employment	 
•	 Post	School	Options	 
•	 Training	&	Development	 
•	 Creative	Development	

Payroll, financial and administrative services 
are also provided to other non-government 
agencies in the human services sector 
through Independent Administration. 

The Association continues to be committed 
to working in partnership with government 
and the community of Western Australia to 
ensure that essential services continue to be 
provided to our most vulnerable citizens. 

Leadership Committee
Sue Gravner 
Wendy Hook 
Michele Hodgson 
Mauricio Sanabria 
Gordon Trewern  
Sally Williams 

Life Members
The Association is privileged to 
have received long and loyal 
service from the following 
Nulsen Life Members; 
Mr Frank Anderson (deceased)  
Mr William A Burns MBE 
(deceased)  
Mr Lloyd G Summerton 
(deceased)   
Mrs Iris Gamble (deceased)   
Mr Alan Crofts (deceased)   

Mrs Shirley Wiggins (deceased)   
Mrs Edie Dawson   
Mr Ken Wiggins  
Mrs Eva Tyler  
Mrs Margaret Luff  
Mr Les Luff  
Mr Eric Goddard  
Mrs Jill Bennett OAM  
Mrs Peg Parkin  
Mrs Ethel Hodgson  
Mr John Hodgson 

Service Quality  
Review Committee
Fiona Grealish - Chair 
Viv Huntsman 
Max Kousins 
Mariani Peck 
Gordon Trewern 
Stephan Van Vlijmen 
Michele Hodgson

Superannuation  
Advisory Committee
Suzie Hoffman 
Graham Holman 
Max Kousins 
Gordon Trewern

Safety Committee
Sheryl Holter - Chair 
Steve Osgood - Safety Rep. 
Kenny Ho - Safety Rep. 
Vicky Spitalny - Safety Rep. 
Rachael Legg - Safety Rep. 
Tony Hawks  
Kumar Krishnan  
Stephan Van Vlijmen 
Michele Hodgson 
Gordon Trewern 
Marina Larma 
Maeline Tanonef - Minute Taker 
Paul Burton - Aurenda Rep. 
Graham Holman

Affirmative Action 
Committee
Kerry Madaffari - Chair 
Dianne Cockman 
Suzie Hoffman 
Graham Holman

Founding Members
Nulsen acknowledges the 
significant contributions made 
by the Founding Members of 
the Management Council and 
the invaluable efforts of our 
early supporters and those 
who have followed. 

Nulsen Founding Office 
Bearers of the Management 
Council at the Inaugural 
Annual General Meeting held 
on October 18, 1955 were: 
William Robert Burns  
- President 
Francis John Anderson  
- Secretary 
George John Summerton  
- Treasurer

Below: Nulsen Connect principles extend to 
every Nulsen department, ensuring positive 
values, attitudes and outcomes in all areas of 
the Association.

Nulsen Connect

  

Life

Community

Support

Health

Training
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Patron’s Report

Over 54 years Nulsen 
has helped shape public 
perception - here in 
Western Australia -  
of what it means to give 
and commit to a  
charitable organisation. 

growing existing services. And importantly 
the number of beds will increase by 108, 
giving that many people with disabilities the 
chance to live in new, specially designed 
homes throughout the metro area. For so 
many residents and their families - who’ve 
been waiting patiently for this type of 
assistance - it’s a wonderful relief to know 
that the foundation of these homes will be 
laid soon. We’re confident that we’re also 
building the foundation of a happy, 
meaningful and more independent life for  
so many new residents. We warmly welcome 
each of them as they begin their new 
journey with Nulsen.

To that end we are thrilled about a new 
business relationship with the Homebuyers 
Centre which has nominated Nulsen as its 
charity of choice. Their knowledge of the 
building industry and valuable contact with 
major suppliers will be instrumental in 
achieving our ambitious goals over the next 
five years.

My recent travels have also proved to me 
that we have much to celebrate in our 
diverse society here in WA. We’re pleased to 
be throwing the spotlight on this vital topic 
for our annual report. Nulsen’s multicultural 
policy will help deepen our understanding  
of these values when it comes to culture, 
ethnic backgrounds and gender.

There’s no doubt that awareness and 
sensitivity toward cultural differences are a 
reality in today’s global business. Indeed we 
believe that leveraging our cultural diversity 
and knowledge will be our springboard into 
new and exciting projects in the years ahead. 
Just watch this space!

Finally, thanks again to our wonderful youth 
patrons - Adam, Robert, Liam and Preston 
plus the committee who’ve been excellent 
ambassadors. To our sponsers and 
supporters including Perth and Waroona 
Ladies - our heartfelt gratitude. We wouldn’t 
be here without you.

I wish you and your families the very best  
for the year ahead. Oh...and remember to 
keep happy!

Tina Altieri 
Patron

It’s an honour and a privilege to present the 
Chairman’s report for Nulsen’s 2010 Annual 
General Meeting (AGM). It has been an 
eventful year, and I’m pleased and grateful to 
report that it has also been a successful one.

Last year, Nulsen’s 2009 AGM coincided with 
the launch of our new brand. Nulsen Haven 
became Nulsen, and our brand received a 
fresh new look. But the rebranding wasn’t 
just a visual makeover. If it had been, we 
could have found more useful ways of 
spending your money. 

The new look represents a new phase in the 
life of your Association. Both Board and 
Management realised that if Nulsen was to 
remain viable, it needed to be more assertive 
of its independence, and more willing to set 
its own course and chart its own destiny.  
The ‘new look’ was seen as a tool to help us 
do that. And I’m pleased to report that it has 
been a very useful tool.

Your Board
I would like to pay tribute to my predecessor, 
our past Chairman Mr John Youens. It was 
during his period of office that we 
completed our review of governance, 
including an update to the Constitution, 
strengthening your Board and its 
effectiveness. I’d like to honour John’s 
leadership and contribution up till the end  
of last year, and also say thank you to Grace 
Parker, who retired from the Board at the 
same time. 

The two Board vacancies were filled with 
very capable replacements. Mr Joe Lamhut, 
who had previously served as an external 
member of our Finance Committee. Joe’s 
considerable financial expertise adds 
substantial value to the Board, and he has 
also taken over as Chair of the Finance 
Committee. In addition, we’ve welcomed  
Ms Mariani Peck, as a ‘family’ member. Since 
she’s joined the Board, Mariani has served 
well on our Service Quality Committee.

At present, your Board is served by three 
committees: the Governance Committee, 
chaired by Mr Ken Palmer; the Finance 
Committee, Chaired by Mr Joe Lamhut; and 
the Service Quality Committee, Chaired by 
Ms Fiona Grealish. These committees consist 
of Board members, ex-officio management 
staff, and external members and I would like 
to take this opportunity to thank them all for 
their respective contributions. 

I’d like to make the point here that I consider 
the Service Quality Committee to be of 
critical importance to our organisation. After 
all, Nulsen exists to provide the best possible 
quality of care to people with disabilities.  
The other committees have vital 
instrumental value, but the oversight that 
the Service Quality Committee performs 
goes right to the very heart of why we are 
here and what we do. To coin a cliché, this is 
where the rubber hits the road, and we lose 
sight of that at our peril. 

Nulsen’s Strategic Focus
The work your Board has done in the 
previous years to revitalize its governance 
has positioned us well for our current 
strategic focus. Nulsen is undergoing a shift, 
and as an organisation we are moving in the 
direction of a stronger business focus. That 
may come across as unsettling to many in 
our loyal and long-standing membership, 
and to be truthful, it’s a transition that has 
had to be very carefully managed. Nulsen 
always was a family, not a business. What will 
this change do to us? Will we lose all the 
values, the ethics and principles that made 
us special, that helped us to do our job so 
well? Will we become just another agency, 
bigger perhaps, but not really all that 
different from all the rest? Will that change 
be to the detriment of the people we serve, 
and of our loyal and committed workforce? 
I’m convinced that the answer is a 
resounding and definite ‘no’. 

Chairman’s Report

In every Board discussion the first and last thing we always consider is the 
wellbeing of the people we serve. We are driven by our mission, and I trust 
that we always will be. 

It’s official - the world really is getting smaller. 
2010 has turned out to be my international 
year of global reunions. With a brother, a 
sister, mum and dad and close friends at 
opposite ends of the globe we managed to 
connect and meet up without a Skype button 
in sight! The reunion sparked many thoughts 
in my mind about where in the world life 
might take us and how hard we strive to build 
a secure and happy future wherever our 
destiny lies. So there I was 35,000 feet in the 
air on my way to Italy for this rare get 
together when I stumble upon an article 
declaring Australians the most generous 
charitable givers in the world. The new report 
from the Charities Aid Foundation, 
interestingly, found that charitable behaviour 
differs immensely across the globe. An act 
that is considered charitable in one country 
may be seen as a regular, everyday, activity in 
another. However, the research also found 
that the correlation between happiness and 
giving is stronger than the link between 
wealth and giving. So one could argue that 
an individual is more likely to give to charity  
if they live in a ‘happy’ country, than if they 
live in a ‘wealthy’ country.

So there you have it - confirmation that 
Aussies are the happiest folk on the planet! 
Well at least this is what we need to remind 
Oprah when she hits our shores later this year. 
But seriously, I’m heartened that, together 
with New Zealanders, we’ve been tagged 
with this title. Over 54 years Nulsen has 
helped shape public perception - here in 
Western Australia - of what it means to give 
and commit to a charitable organisation. It’s 
more than simply dipping your hand in the 
purse to throw in some loose change. Nulsen 
has grown so tremendously because of the 
commitment by so many who want to make 
a difference - by donating not only monetarily 
but dedicating time, energy and creative 
brain power to create change for the better.

And what an amazing growth spurt we’re 
experiencing! Since the new Nulsen 
branding was launched we’ve hardly come 
up for air. The very backbones of the 
organisation - our staff members - have 
increased by 170 over the past two years. 
Gordon and the team have been working 
hard at bringing new services on line and 
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Acknowledgements  
and Thanks
There are so many people to acknowledge 
that it’s hard to know where to begin. You 
will understand that I will not mention you 
by name.

Thank you, first of all, to all our care and 
support staff. You are a growing number of 
well-trained, highly committed people, 
increasingly reflecting the diversity of the 
broader community. You represent the face 
of Nulsen, and you are doing a difficult job 
extremely well. Thank you all!

Thank you also to our administrative, office, 
professional and maintenance staff. Your 
support makes it possible for our front-line 
people to provide such a high level of care. 

Thank you to our middle and senior 
management. You run a tight ship, and you 
steer it in the right direction. 

Thank you to our numerous supporters 
within and outside of Nulsen. Volunteers, 
members of Nulsen, family members and 
others who have supported us so generously 
and in so many ways. Some of you will 
receive special recognition later today.

Thank you to the members of the Board and 
the various committees. We work 
harmoniously and effectively, I thank you for 
your support and trust, your professionalism 
and commitment to the Nulsen’s values.

Thank you also to our prime funding agency, 
the Disability Services Commission, and its 
Director-General, Dr Ron Chalmers. And 
thank you to LotteryWest, which has again 
assisted us with grants to meet capital and 
infrastructure needs. We appreciate your 
ongoing support.

Conclusion
Nulsen continues as a strong, viable, well-run 
organisation. We have a budget of nearly $20 
million for 2010/2011, and we finished our 
past year with the smallest possible surplus. 
Those of you who know me will understand 
that’s exactly where I’d like us to be.

Ladies and gentlemen, please take Nulsen’s 
Annual Report home with you, and take the 
time to go through it. In addition to the 
material that you will find in any such 
document, the Report showcases Nulsen as 
a place of diversity. Text and pictures will 
show you how we’re growing as a diverse 
and vibrant organization, reflecting our 
broader community and serving it to the 
best of our ability. I’m proud of what’s in it, 
and proud of what it represents. I commend 
it for you to read.

Thank you, and God bless you all.

Aart Plug 
Chairman

Half of our Board members will always be 
family members; they are the guardians of 
our mission and values. In every Board 
discussion the first and last thing we always 
consider is the wellbeing of the people we 
serve. We are driven by our mission, and I 
trust that we always will be. 

At the same time, the landscape is changing, 
and if we don’t respond thoughtfully and 
effectively to those changes we will be left 
behind. That’s the reality. Increasingly, we will 
not be able to provide the strong, values-
driven quality of service that is Nulsen’s 
hallmark. And it will be more and more 
difficult to be a quality employer as well.  
We will find it increasingly difficult to survive, 
much less thrive. 

In 2006, we adopted a five-year Strategic Plan.  
It was a good plan, and it has served us well 
during a five-year period of sustained growth 
and development. We are now in the process 
of reshaping our strategic focus for the next five 
years. I’d like to highlight some interconnected 
elements of that strategic focus:

The Next Five Years
We are making a deliberate effort to take 
control of our own future. It’s true, we do 
depend on government funding to keep our 
operations going, and there is no prospect of 
that changing in the future. This is as it 
should be, and we acknowledge that with 
appreciation. Mr Colin Barnett, our State 
Premier is on record as pointing out that ‘… 
the purpose of economic development is to 
fulfil our social responsibilities. The benefits 
of our present economic prosperity must be 

shared by all Western Australians.’ And that 
includes the people that we serve. 

However, Mr Barnett has also acknowledged 
that Government is not always in the best 
position to meet community needs. It needs 
to support community organisations in 
providing effective and flexible services that 
meet the real needs of individuals and families 
in the community, with a focus on outcomes 
rather than outputs. We aim to be one of the 
leading agencies in WA to do just that.

It’s time we went out and chased up 
business. Rather than simply waiting for the 
funding provider - and families! - to come to 
us, we will increasingly go out and say: ‘This 
is what we can do, and we strive to do it 
better than anyone else. We can help you 
meet a need, and this is how we propose to 
do it. Give us a fair level of funding, and we 
can make a bigger contribution’. We are 
already having notable successes in 
supporting people with acquired brain injury 
and with challenging behaviours. And we 
plan and firmly expect to build on that.

Nulsen has an increasing stock of expertise 
that we can harness on a commercial basis.  
I think of Independent Administration, 
Therapy Services, Training, and more. This 
expertise can be invested and developed  
to provide commercial returns that 
strengthen our own viability, and to offer 
greater benefits to the broader community. 
That’s what we’re working on right now. 
Watch this space! 

We are faced with an unprecedented and 
growing level of unmet need. Your Board 
and Management firmly believe that Nulsen 

has a moral obligation to do what we can to 
help address that need. And we are also 
finding that the processes we presently have 
to deal with throw too many constraints in 
our way. We have to find ways to overcome 
or circumvent those constraints, and we’d 
like to think we’re increasingly successful at 
doing so. We have developed and are 
implementing a growth strategy that sets us 
on the way to continued and sustainable 
growth. In this connection I especially 
recognise the way that Nulsen’s senior 
management, together with the Strategic 
Planning Subcommittee, under the able 
leadership of our Board member Richard 
Curry, is charting the way for the coming 
five-year period.

National Disability Insurance Scheme 
(NDIS)
I’d also like to highlight the moves underway 
to come to the establishment of a NDIS. Up 
till now, funding for people with disabilities  
is often a lottery, and there is something 
deeply dehumanising about a process that 
requires you to prove that you are at a 
breaking point, worse off than almost 
everyone else, to have any chance of 
support. The NDIS has the potential to help 
Australia shift to an entitlement system, and 
that is something Nulsen strongly supports. 
We’re pleased to note that the proposal for 
an NDIS has bipartisan support, but there is 
still a long and difficult road to travel before 
good intentions bear fruit in tangible results. 
Nulsen and other disability service agencies 
will be working together to harness 
community support for the NDIS. 

‘This is what we can do, and we strive to do it better than anyone else. We 
can help you meet a need, and this is how we propose to do it. Give us a fair 
level of funding, and we can make a bigger contribution’.
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The Disability Services Commission 
(DSC) has planned to provide 
additional accommodation support 
to 260 people in 2010-11. Some of 
this growth will target people 
requiring more traditional services 
and a large number wishing to 
access more independent living in 
the community under the 
Commission’s new Community 
Living Strategy. The Associations 
current services are focused on the 
more complex end of the high 
support spectrum, but we will 
consider more informal community 
based options in 2012 once we 
have 60% of the current Growth 
Strategy implemented. 

My report will provide you with an 
outline of the many operational 
activities that have occurred 
throughout the year. It seeks to not 
only address sustainable growth, 
but ensure that ongoing 
development of skills and 
knowledge will position the 
Association to meet future demand 
and challenges as a Specialist 
Disability Service Provider into the 
future. Nulsen is presenting itself as 
a “Learning Organisation” to ensure 
quality services are provided to 
current and future generations of 
people with disabilities. 

This report reflects and celebrates 
the diversity and inclusiveness of the 
Nulsen Community within the wider 
Western Australian Community. 

Nulsen Life
Nulsen Life, the Accommodation Services 
arm of the Association, continues to grow 
and embrace the fundamental principles of 
Care, Quality, Inclusion, Happiness, and 
Respect for the 108 people currently residing 
in the 23 homes across the metropolitan area. 
These principles, are being lived out in a way 
that truly reflects the dedication and 
compassion of the diverse group of Support 
Workers who undertake the day to day care 
needs of the Residents.

It is pleasing to report that with significant 
input from the Nulsen Connect program, the 
Therapy and Nursing Services, Creative and 
Cultural Development team and the Nulsen 
Community program; the Residents in the 
accommodation homes are leading more 
diverse and interesting lives. They are 
regularly involved in activities within their 
local community, attending creative art 
workshops, participating in music sessions 
and they are also being included more in the 
day to day tasks within their homes. This has 
resulted in a more engaging lifestyle for the 
Residents in which emphasis is on inclusion 
and engagement.

CEO’s Report

8

The past Financial Year (2009/2010) has  
seen seven people welcomed into the 
Accommodation Service; Nathan Palmer 
(Herald Ave), Edin Nasic (Waterlily Way), 
Michael Frith (White Place), Emily Peck 
(Dillon Place), Justin Carter (White Place), 
Guy Kynaston (White Place) and Elizabeth 
McKerlie (Charlesworth). 

It is with regret that we have sadly lost two 
young ladies living at the Charlesworth Estate, 
Ina McGinty (August 2009) and Kellie Bridger 
(April 2010) who passed away. Ina was 
returned to her ancestral home in Kununurra 
and laid to rest by her family in a traditional 
manner. Two long standing staff members 
who knew Ina well travelled to Kununurra 
and represented Nulsen at the funeral.

Kellie, who touched so many people’s lives 
with her infectious smile and disposition, 
was farewelled by a huge number of staff 
and family at a beautiful ceremony in 
Fremantle. To Kellie’s parents we thank you 
for the privilege of allowing Nulsen to care 
and support your daughter. 

The following graphs outline demographic 
information of current services users in the 
accommodation program from 1st July 2009 
to 30th June 2010. 

Management Structure
The implementation of the Residential 
Service Managers (RSMs) role and a strategic 
move towards a more managerial and 
supervisory role across the services has been 
highly successful with a much closer link 
between RSMs, families and staff. It has also 
meant that there is a more united working 
partnership with the RSM’s, Therapy Services 
and the Manager of Nursing Services. As a 
result of this change there has been a 
reduction of hospitalization episodes across 
the Accommodation Services this year, a 
more robust partnership with the Nulsen 
Community team and a more vigilant 
approach to working with Therapy 
professionals in regards to speech therapy, 
occupational therapy and physiotherapy.

This year each RSM took on the responsibility 
for managing two accommodation services. 
This was an objective set out last year as part  
of the growth strategy and is now fully 
implemented. 

Project Management
The Project team of Amanda Lovelock, Suzie 
Hoffman and Rod Pennings have worked 
tirelessly to achieve the goals and objectives 

The 2009/10 year has seen a welcome 
interest in the Non-Government 
Sector (NGS) by both Commonwealth 
and State Governments. 

Encouragingly, both Governments’ 
messages are similar in noting that 
the NGS is an important partner in 
the delivery of services to 
community, and that Governments 
need to re build and re shape the 
way in which they engage with 
this sector. This approach is 
welcomed by the Association as 
we see the sector recognised for 
being an efficient and effective 
deliverer of quality services. In 
addition it is recognised that in 
many cases it delivers services 
better than Government and 
recognition that Government 
funding and business relations 
needs to be more supportive of 
this valuable work performed by 
many Non Government 
Organisations in order for the 
sector to remain sustainable. 

The position of both Commonwealth 
and State Governments presents a 
welcomed opportunity as we 
commenced the review of our 
Strategic Plan for the next five years. 
Growth and Development of the 
Association will need to align to the 
agenda of Governments as they seek 
to enlist the Non-Government Sector 
to do more in the delivery of services 
into the future. 

Intellectual (includes Down Syndrome) 
Cerebral Palsy 

Acquired Brain Injury 
Autism/PDD (Includes Asperger’s) 

Other neurological  
Para/quadric(tetra)/hemiplegia 

Other 
Other Physical 

Muscular Dystrophy 
Speech impairment 

Blind/vision impairment 
Deaf/hearing impairement 

Psychiatric 
Attention deficit (hyperactivity) disorder 

Deafblind 
Specific learning - other Intellectual/ADD 

Spina Bifida 
Not identified 

Multiple Sclerosis 
Motor neurone disease 

Developmental delay (0-5 years only) 

# Service users

 20 40 60 80 100 

Primary Count           Secondary Count
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ServiCe USer PriMAry ANd SeCoNdAry diSAbiLiTy deMogrAPHiC

Nulsen is presenting  
itself as a  “Learning 
Organisation” to ensure 
quality services are 
provided to current and 
future generations of 
people with disabilities.
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Subiaco

blue gum Community Centre

rockingham Community room

Kenwick

rivervale
PerTH

FreMANTLe

Wilson

Maddington

Kalamunda

Westfield

Huntingdale

beckenham
victoria Park

Cannington 
Head office

Samson

Willeton

gosnells

 

 Number of residences at each location
Nulsen locations project is in collaboration with Nulsen Health 

and Geoff Potter, a Clinical Psychologist from 
the Centre for Applied Behaviour Analysis 
Queensland, who has been engaged to 
assist us develop this Positive Behaviour 
Management Framework. 

Geoff has been contracted for one year to 
train and assist several of our staff to become 
‘train the trainer’ in the field of positive 
behavioural management and he is 
developing several personal programs for 
some of our more challenging Residents. 

Many of those people seeking services and 
in critical need of accommodation services 
have challenging behaviour. This is not an 
area new to the Association but one in 
which we wish to ensure that we have the 
right frameworks of support and training in 
order to deliver the most appropriate 
services. The need for robust risk 
management strategies is essential in these 
services and we will continue to lobby the 
DSC for separate funding for a full time 
Clinical Psychologist. 

Ageing Process
Nulsen Life is currently reviewing issues 
around the ageing of many of the current 
Residents in the Accommodation Services. 
There are currently 33 people over the age  
of 50 years. These Residents represent 
approximately 36% of the existing people in 
the Accommodation Services program.  
As the growth of new services take place 
consideration will be given to developing 
appropriate accommodation options to 
manage the needs of the elderly.

Charlesworth Estate was the Association’s 
first endeavour to meet the needs of ageing 
and people requiring increasingly high levels 
of health support. Consideration is being 
given to how the Charlesworth concept can 
be improved and expanded for future 
ageing needs and palliative care. 

The opening up of Enrolled Nursing 
Scholarships is one small way in building up 
a professional workforce skilled to provide 
essential services to particular need groups 
within the Nulsen Community.

We expect to see significant demand in 
specialist disability services for people with 
severe and profound intellectual disabilities 
as they age into the future. 

vACANCy 
LoCATioN

ToTAL  
bed No.’S CoNFirMed vACANCy

NEW VACANCIES:

Eudoria St* 7 0 7

Centenary Ct  
(White Pl)

15 9 6

Gannaway St 5 0 5

Astrolabe Way 5 0 5

Wadoria* 10 0 10

Total 42 9 33
ExISTING VACANCIES:

Helsall Ct* 3 1 2

Crawford St 5 2 3

St Kilda Rd/
Warrida

5 0 5

Total 13 3 10

grand Total 55 12 43

ProjeCTed vACANCy PLACeMeNTS

* Denotes properties solely owned by the Association

set for them over the last reporting year. 
They have worked closely with the DSC, 
RSMs and new families to assist their sons 
and daughters move into the vacancies 
across the Accommodation Services. Work 
has commenced towards the establishment 
of several new services due for construction 
over the next 18 months and we will see a 
further 43 places opened up. 

In the last 12 months Nulsen has received  
29 enquiries related to accommodation 
services. Predominantly these have been 
from families enquiring about availability of 
services for their sons or daughters, and 
some who are enquiring about specific 
needs and circumstances.

As part of the Association’s Accommodation 
Growth Strategy document submitted to the 
DSC, the Board of Management has 
approved the Association borrowing $1.5M 
to assist in the growth strategy. This will be 
used solely to buy and build infrastructure to 
create new services. At the time of this 
report these funds are committed to the 
redevelopment of the Association’s property 
in Eudoria Street, Gosnells and allocated for 
the purchase of additional land (Wadoria) in 
the Gosnells area, plus the construction of 
two more services on this site. 

Further land has been identified and 
purchased with additional funds flowing 
through to the Department of Housing (DoH) 

Nulsen Life 2010-2011  
Future Directions
The vision for the Accommodation Services 
for the next year is one of extreme optimism. 
It is proposed in the following year:

•	 	The	Nulsen	Connect	program	will	be	
firmly embedded in all the residential 
homes across the Association.

•	 	Implementation	of	a	‘Learning	
Organisation’ culture across 
accommodation services 

•	 	The	Positive	Behaviour	Framework	will	 
be in place in all the residential homes 
that require this level of behavioural 
intervention. This will include having an 
appropriately trained, dedicated group  
of staff that can be called upon to assist 
support staff when dealing with 
behavioural issues.

•	 	To	have	developed	a	long	term	strategy	
to address the ageing needs of the 
Residents in the Accommodation 
Services. This will include increasing the 
provision of palliative care.

•	 	To	address	the	training	needs	of	the	staff	
in the service that provides care to 
people who have an Acquired Brain 

Injury (ABI). This will include making sure 
that the area of ‘Rehabilitation’ is strongly 
advocated and people are given every 
opportunity to return to being as 
independent as possible.

•	 	Further	explore	appropriate	leisure	
activities for many of the current 
Residents in the services that are not 
eligible for Alternatives To Employment 
(ATE) funding.

•	 	Ensure	that	the	‘quality	care’	of	the	
existing Residents is not compromised in 
any way as the Accommodation Services 
expands due to the Associations Growth 
Strategy.

The Accommodation program has and will 
continue to have a full agenda into the  
2010-2011 year.

to support two projects, one in Gannaway 
Street, Wilson and the other in Astrolabe Way, 
Swan View. These services will accommodate 
a further 10 to 12 people. 

Partnerships
During the last year Nulsen Life has continued 
to work closely with several other 
organisations and formed a good working 
relationship with them. The ongoing 
partnership with the DSC and DoH continues 
to grow and we are grateful for the financial 
support they provide for each of the Residents 
in the accommodation program. In addition 
to this funding we have been successful in 
obtaining funding from the Commission to 
pay for ‘set up’ and refurbishment costs for 
Crawford Street, Helsall Court and Warrida 
Way. An additional undertaking from the 
Commission will help fund the set up costs  
of all the new building projects that come 
under the Nulsen Growth Strategy. 

Nulsen continues to forge a strong 
relationship with the Central Institute of 
Technology (formerly Central TAFE) as our 
main training partner. The Association is 
re-positioning itself as a learning 
organisation much like a tertiary hospital. 
Delivery of Certificate 3 and 4 training for 
Support Workers continued and Central’s 
staff were also engaged to develop a Skills 
Competency Framework and a Training Plan 
for the Association which should be 
implemented by the end of the 2010 year. 
Further, the Association and Central Institute 
of Technology in conjunction with four other 
agencies developed an Induction 
Employment Preparation Pilot Program 
(IEPP), funded by the DSC for two years to 
better train and prepare new staff entering 
the disability services sector. 

Another initiative underway with Central 
Institute of Technology is the establishment 
of a pilot program for six current staff 
members who wish to advance their training 
and become Enrolled Nurses. This will be a 
two year training program and will give staff 
on the job training. The longer term aim is to 
employ the graduates in future permanent 
nursing positions across the Association.

Nulsen Life was directed to establish a 
Positive Behaviour Support Framework for 
the Association and present this to the Chief 
Executive Officer by the end of 2010. The 

iNdigeNoUS origiN deMogrAPHiC

  Neither Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander  
- 71.05% (108 service users)

  Aboriginal but not Torres Strait Islander 
origin - 4.6% (7 service users)

  Both Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
origin - 5.92% (9 service users)
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oUTSTANdiNg reqUeSTS by diSCiPLiNe Per MoNTH
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•	 	Continence	Management	and	Advisory	
Service attended by Silver Chain clinical 
nurses who provide advice management 
and an additional product subsidy of 
$480 per year for residents with ongoing 
continence condition who are financially 
disadvantaged. The financial assistance  
is in addition to CAPS funding.

Clinical Governance Framework
The Association’s Clinical Governance 
Framework is being reviewed and further 
enhanced by Caroline Watt and Jackie 
Mackay ensuring accountable delivery of 
safe and optimal quality care for our 
Residents. The Disability Sector does not 
have its own Clinical Governance Framework 
and this has been a concern for some 
organisations in the Specialist Disability 
Services area for some time. Organisations 
such as Nulsen carry a higher level of risk in 
the management of a range of health needs 
and it is essential that good clinical 
governance is practiced. The review of the 
framework will be completed by the end of 
2010 and all service areas will be required  
to comply with the updated standards. 

Nulsen Health
Funding
Clinical services were successful in receiving 
an increase in funding from the DSC in 
2009/2010. A further 25 people received 
funding for Disability Professional Services  
to be provided through Nulsen Health. Sixty 
people remain on the waiting list for services 
as at the 30/6/2010, with internally funded 
services being provided to these individuals. 
Further growth funding from the DSC is 
expected in 2010/2011, which will be 
pursued by Clinical Services.

Positive Behaviour Support 
Framework (PBSF)
The PBSF is in collaboration with Nulsen Life. 
This Framework aims to work in three spheres 
within the Association through: 

•	 	Program	design	and	staff	training	using	
applied behaviour analysis principles; 

•	 	policy	and	procedure	development;	and	

•	 	an	overarching	supervision	function	
ensuring the Association and its staff 
are implementing policy and 
procedure correctly. 

As noted earlier in this report, the Framework 
will be presented to me prior to the end of 
2010 and formal implementation will occur  
in the 2011 year, building on the current trials. 
This is a significant project for both Nulsen 
Health and Life and will have a positive  
impact on supporting people who exhibit 
challenging behaviours at Nulsen. 

ServiCe deSCriPTioN
oCCASioNS 
oF ServiCe

Nursing assessments and reviews 108

Medicare Health assessments (GP) 96

Individual skin care support plan reviews 108

Epilepsy support plan reviews 52

Training sessions conducted 40

Healthcare skills training and assessment packages developed 18

New Health care procedures developed 12

Referrals 100

Total 534

CoMPLeTed reqUeSTS by diSCiPLiNe Per MoNTH reqUeSTS reCeived by diSCiPLiNe Per MoNTH
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Occupational Therapy          Speech Pathology          Physiotherapy Occupational Therapy          Speech Pathology          Physiotherapy Occupational Therapy          Speech Pathology          Physiotherapy

Pandemic Influenza Plan
The Association completed its Pandemic 
Influenza Management Plan which will guide 
the Association’s operations through a major 
influenza pandemic. All department staff 
have been instructed in the plan and all 
services have been provided with the 
necessary personal protective equipment 
supplies. The plan seeks to ensure that all 
essential services are maintained to the best 
of our ability through the management 
direction of a Pandemic Emergency Team 
(PET). Central to our plan is the liaison and 
collaboration with key government 
departments such as the DSC and the 
Department of Health. 

Nursing Services
The Manager of Nursing has ensured that 
throughout the year, with limited resources, 
issues around wound care and assessments, 
parent liaison, palliative care, medical liaison, 
staff training and assessment, residents/
service user’s health care assessments and 
reviews have been completed. Nursing 
services are integral to the population 
supported by Nulsen and through future 
growth we are planning to increase the 
number of Registered Nursing Services 
across the organisation. 

NUrSiNg ServiCeS STATiSTiCS

Links
Clinical Services continues to develop and 
maintain its links in the sector. Involvement 
in the Positive Behaviour Interest Group, 
Sleep Interest Group and the Speech 
Pathology Interest group continued in 
2009/2010. In addition links with the Centre 
for Applied Behaviour Analysis and the 
Schools of Psychology, Speech Pathology 
and Occupational Therapy at ECU have 
been developed. 

Internally links with nursing services, Nulsen 
Connect and Nulsen Life and Community 
have been nurtured, leading to improved 
communication, team work and outcomes 
for the service users.

Nursing
The future for nursing promises to be 
dynamic and challenging through continual 
development and improvement of support 
and training for staff to meet the needs of our 
Residents. Support workers have long been 
recognised for the integral part they play in 
the delivery of care for our residents and are 
now being given the opportunity to develop 
their skills further to obtain an Enrolled Nurse 
(EN) qualification.

As noted earlier, Nulsen entered into a joint 
venture with Central Institute of Technology 
to provide a part time two year EN program 
for staff who would like to be considered for 
a position. There will be six positions 
available. Further positions will be made 
available in 2011.

Staff selected to participate in the program 
will be required to attend one full day of study 
per week and one day per month of clinical 
experience per month at the Central Institute 
of Technology campus in Mt Lawley. The 
participants will be located at Charlesworth 
Estate. In stage 2/3 participants are required 
to attend clinical placement outside their 
usual workplace for eight weeks.

Nulsen will fund the cost of the program for 
each person and the course will commence 
mid October 2010. The Association has 
experienced difficulty in recruiting ENs who 
have disability specific training. The program 
will be strategically important to filling this 
shortfall and ensuring that we can meet 
health care support demands of the future. 

New services for residents 
•	 	WA	Council	General	Practitioner	Oral	

Health Initiative provides medically 
necessary dental care and preventative 
oral assessment through the Medicare 
Enhanced Primary Care packages.  
Dr Patrick Shanahan (retired dentist) has 
offered his services to trial this program 
for residents at Charlesworth. An initial 
assessment is carried out in the resident’s 
home and a plan for preventative dental 
care implemented in association with  
the person’s dentist. There are some 
issues with the program funding for 
many residents who require a General 
Anaesthetic to assist in examination and 
the Association will strive to look at 
alternative funding and access strategies. 
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Mobile Education Unit
Nulsen’s Mobile Education Unit (MEU) travels 
throughout Western Australia delivering 
tailored programs to students and 
community groups, raising awareness and 
educating people on issues surrounding 
disability and acquired brain injury (ABI).

The bus provides interactive computer 
scenarios on disability and its impact on the 
person, family and society, as well as practical 
activities which the students participate in. 
Nulsen employees Dianne Cockman and 
Kathy Rouse are passionate about spreading 
the word of the program; their long term 
ambition is to create a fully integrated 
Program that aligns with the education 
curriculum. We not only want to teach 
participants values, tolerance and 
acceptance but we want to encourage them 
into taking action.

Bookings in 2010 were limited due to the 
lack of funding to provide staffing and 
promotion. The Association will continue to 
seek opportunities to expand the program 
however the age of the Bus and its ongoing 
maintenance requirements will be reviewed 
in 2011 as it may not be viable to maintain 
the current vehicle or the program. 

Nulsen Community 
SCOPE
Nulsen Community has forged a stronger 
working relationship with Nulsen Life which 
allows delivery of a flexible person centred 
service to all participants. This has been a 
strategic decision to maximise service 
outcomes and is highlighted in the fact that 
Nulsen Community has adopted a customer 
service culture delivering more flexible services 
within participant’s family/private homes in 
the community and working closely with 
family and other accommodation options. 

It is envisaged that the Nulsen Community 
Program will see some limited expansion over 
the next twelve months as opportunities to 
expand the SCOPE program are forthcoming 
and also other opportunities to manage 
community centres similar to Blue Gum 
present themselves.

The Nulsen Connect Program team has been 
working closely with Nulsen Community to 
ensure alignment with the Person Centred 
Planning and ‘learning organisation’ 
strategies of the Association. Each 
participant has chosen areas of interest from 
the course outlines offered within Nulsen 
Community and they are working towards 
achieving the Alternatives to Employment 
outcomes i.e. Social Participation, Personal 
Independence, Life Long Learning and 
Enhanced Natural Support Networks. One 
hundred percent of the plans have been 
written to encompass the participant’s 
choices, at present fifty percent have been 
implemented whilst we envisage the 
remainder will come on line with the further 
implementation of Nulsen Connect. This will 
up skill our staff to further the inclusion of 
our participants in main stream activities. 

people with disabilities. Key success of this  
is the building and maintenance of 
relationships within the broader arts 
community and working on joint venture 
projects as opportunities arise. Looking 
forward we hope to work much closer with 
the Department of Arts and Culture in 
promoting greater take up of the National 
Disability Arts Strategy throughout other 
disability service providers in WA. DADDA 
remains a strong supporter and ally in 
ensuring people with disabilities have  
access to quality creative and cultural events 
and activities.

The following outlines a selection of events 
coordinated by Patti Ferber and her Creative 
and Cultural Development team and provides 
some insight into the important work 
undertaken. 

•	 	Rockingham	Community	Art	Room	(CAR)	
continues to work out of the Challenger 
TAFE providing a strong inclusive ethos at 
the art room. This is coupled with a focus 
on developing and nurturing talent with 
at least one of the young artists receiving 
private art tuition and working towards 
holding a solo or shared exhibition in the 
next 12 months.   
The CAR participants will also be working 
out of the Ngulla Community Garden in 
Baldivis on a Sculpture project over the 
next 12 months courtesy of a grant from 
Community Art Network WA.  

•	 	The	partnership	with	Victoria	Park	Centre	
for the Arts continues to be vibrant and 
strong.  The third annual Creative 
Journeys exhibition will be launched on 
November 26 and is now considered an 
integral part of the art centres annual 
gallery Program. 

ServiCe AreA deSCriPTioN STATiSTiCS

Client Hours 2048 per month

No. of clients 35 ATE Funded 6 Fee for Service

No. of clients (waiting list) 5 people 600 hours per month

No. of Support Staff 1 full time coordinator 
14 full time 
5 part time

No. of vehicles 12 vehicles

No. of vehicles on order 3 additional 
4 replacement

SCoPe ServiCe STATiSTiCS

Community Partnerships 
The Blue Gum Music Program is a four way 
partnership between Nulsen Community, 
Rocky Bay, Getabout and Interchange. 

The program started with two participants 
with a $500 grant from the Melville Rotary 
Club. Since its early inception the group has 
grown to having 30-40 regular attendees.

The service has been successful in obtaining 
$4,000 grant from the City of Melville and 
$1,000 each from Nulsen and Rocky Bay for 
musical instruments which has allowed the 
program to run through to June 30th 2010. 
The Music Program has applied to City of 
Melville for a $10,000 grant to expand the 
program to two sessions per week. Melville 
Rotary has come on board again with $1,500 
to pay for a Musical Assistant for one day; 
Rocky Bay has matched this figure to pay for 
a Musical Assistant for a second day. Nulsen 
has provided in kind support of $1,500 being 
the hall hire at Blue Gum Community Centre.

Nulsen Community continues to have strong 
demand for community groups to use the 
centre. The Blue Gum Recreation Centre has 
been a successful strategy in ensuring 
community inclusion and collaboration for 

people with disabilities and the wider 
Melville community. With approximately 
10,000 people accessing the centre per 
month it is evident that the centre is 
meeting a diverse range of need within  
the community. 

Creative & Cultural Development
With the launch this year of the National 
Disability Arts Strategy, the Association is 
well placed through its Creative and Cultural 
Development Program to promote the 
Strategy and the importance of arts 
participation for people with disabilities. The 
Association remains passionate and resolute 
in its resolve to see arts participation increase 
across the Western Australian community for 

SCHooL dATe

St Judes June 15, 2009

Hale School September 7 – 11, 2009

Central Institute of 
Technology

March 25, 2010

Central Institute of 
Technology

September 20, 2010

Ansvar Insurance September 2010

MobiLe edUCATioN UNiT booKiNg STATiSTiCS

CeNTre USe/ACTiviTy STATiSTiCS

No. Community Groups 25 per month

Group attendance 15 - 450 per group

Total attendance per month 10,000 people per 
month average

No. Hours per month 425 hours per month

Hire Fees and Charges $9,437.50

bLUe gUM CoMMUNiTy CeNTre  STATiSTiCS •	 	Two	new	clay	and	creative	skills	
development workshops have been 
introduced in 2010.

•	 	Our	partnership	with	Perth	City	Farm	is	also	
opening up opportunities for residents to 
take part in community art projects and 
this year we are part of a community 
mosaic group creating a mosaic installation 
for the Community Room as well as being 
involved in the nursery.  

•	 	City	Farm	is	hosting	the	Lottery	West	
Community Cultural Development 
workshops facilitated by Men of the Trees 
CEO Sandra Krempl.

•  Three Aboriginal Cultural Awareness 
workshops have been held for staff. These 
workshops are brought to us by the 
Lottery West grant.

•	 	Three	story	telling	sessions	have	been	
held by Josie Boyle, Aboriginal artist, 
singer/songwriter and Bronwyn Goss, 
artist and friend.

•	 	A	Sing	along	in	the	Wongi	language	and	
English was held at Charlesworth Estate 
during NAIDOC week and residents also 
attended Sorry Day events in East Perth 
and Bayswater.

•	 	The	ninth	“As	We	Are”	Art	Exhibition	 
was held during October 2010 at the 
Perth Town Hall.  

•	 	Lotterywest	funded	a	Creative	 
and Cultural Communities Project 
ensuring that the Creative and Cultural 
Development Program  
has a small team of staff to expand on 
workshops and also take skills and 
experiences into the homes to train both 
residents and staff in art skills 
development.   

Nulsen welcomes and encourages active community 
participation by building valuable roles for each 
person. An active community is key to building an 
empowered community.
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Youth Patron Program
The 2010 Youth Patron Program continues  
its success in promoting the awareness of 
disability to our younger generation, 
through an extensive series of activities 
coordinated by year 11 students at  
Hale School. 

Our 2010 Youth Patrons are Adam Birman, 
Robert Ferritto, Liam O’Shea and Preston 
Sudlow. The Committee comprises of  
Ben Joseph, Jack Murray, Jackson Peos,  
Ethan Schrum, Luke Yeo, Jack Young and 
Jake Willet. 

Again our 2010 Patrons have enjoyed and 
excelled in their roles, have contributed to 
the program successfully promoting Nulsen, 
our cause and immersing themselves in our 
culture. They are to be congratulated on the 
leadership shown and their natural aptitude 
for breaking down barriers and being truly 
inclusive of people with disabilities.

The 2010 Patrons are our fifth group taking 
part in this program. Four year eleven 
students are chosen every year from 
numerous applications to become Youth 
Patrons for a year; up to another seven 
students become Youth Patron Committee 
Members. The Program was designed to 
develop leadership skills, promote 
awareness of disability at an early age and 
encourage young adults to take an active 
role in improving the quality of life for 
people with disabilities. The program has 
evolved and has seen a continuing to 
increase in interaction between the young 
men and Nulsen residents. 

The program provides opportunities for 
Patrons to educate fellow students at their 
school, creating awareness about disability 
issues and promoting positive messages 
about living with a disability and the 
individual and collective responsibility we 
have towards creating a civil society. 

The Youth Patrons have visited Nulsen 
services and facilities and Nulsen residents 
have enjoyed lunching with the boys at Hale 
and attending sports days, art cup days and 
music events at Hale. Patrons thoroughly 
enjoy the Nulsen Residents Cocktail Party 
and they attend Public Speaking sessions 
with Margot Halbert, of Positive Persuasions. 
The program aims to put their newfound 
knowledge to the test providing 
opportunities for presentations to fellow 
peers at school assemblies, at a Board Room 
luncheon, generously sponsored by Kailis 
Bros Leederville, and the Nulsen Gala Ball 
towards the end of the year. They also host 
the Associations Mobile Education Unit for a 
week, giving the whole of school a hands-on 
insight into disability awareness. 

Nulsen extends its sincere thanks and 
appreciation to Hale School Principal Stuart 
Meade, Service Learning Coordinator Jill 
Maskiell and Director of Development Dave 
Reed for their assistance and enthusiasm in 
supporting the program during the year. 

‘Today’s visit has done two main things.  
It has forced me to appreciate my life & 
abilities much, much more. It has also given 
me a new empathy towards people with 
disabilities, their families & carers.’

A major element of the Nulsen Connect program is 
the opportunity for families to play a major role in 
the development of their loved one’s program. 

Nulsen Connect
Nulsen Connect is an overarching Program 
designed to be absorbed into every 
department of the Association; it binds the 
culture, residents, families and staff together 
to support the ongoing realization of 
Nulsen’s Mission and Governing Principles. 

The aim of the Program is to preserve and 
promote the values, professional attitudes 
and practices that support and foster ongoing 
improvement in the quality of life of Nulsen 
residents. The Program achieves this by 
facilitating learning experiences that prepare 
staff to plan, implement, develop and 
evaluate a range of inclusive, communicative, 
leisure and health promoting activities that 
are appropriate, meaningful and beneficial  
for people with disabilities. 

Nulsen Connect is based on sound research 
in the areas of Person-Centred Planning, 
Social Role Valorisation, Active Support, 
Quality of Life, and Inclusion. It builds on 
learning and practices of the 1980’s and 
1990’s which have been re modelled into  
a contemporary framework.

Nulsen Connect 2009 - 2010
Between October 2009 and June 2010,  
54 staff across the Association plus five staff 
from external agencies, have participated  
in intensive two-day Nulsen Connect 
workshops with ongoing training and 
support provided by the Co-ordinators of 
the program. This training has prepared 
participants to implement and support the 
Program and to work together to improve 
the quality of life of the residents. The 
participants have included Support Workers, 
Residential Services Managers, Managers 
and staff of both Nulsen Community and 
Nulsen Health and the Director of 
Accommodation Services. 

Training provides a sound philosophical and 
theoretical background. Staff develop 
practical skills in person-centred planning 
with an emphasis on recognizing and 
developing abilities; discovering interests; 
developing communication; and facilitating 
inclusion both at home and in community 
settings. Staff who have participated in the 
training believe that Nulsen Connect has 

created a better team environment and a 
better understanding of our services, with 
both Residents and staff learning new skills on 
a daily basis. The program has made it 
possible to identify support workers with 
great passion and commitment to maintain 
and improve the quality of life of the residents. 

Throughout this period, the program has 
been introduced in ten houses, with twenty 
Person Centred Plans (PCP) now being 
implemented. The outcome of the training 
and PCP process is a brief but 
comprehensive document which provides  
a very positive perspective of the life of each 
Resident. This document comprises a profile 
of the person and an individualised program 
that supports both current skills and new 
learning goals. These goals for skill 
maintenance and development are based 
on the person’s own goals, hopes and 
dreams, informed by the person and people 
who know him/her well, with the overall 
aims of inclusion and the highest possible 
quality of life.

A paper describing the progress of  
Nulsen Connect was presented this year  
at the National Disability Services  
Conference in Queensland and at the 
Western Australia State Conference of the 
Australasian Society for the Study of 
Intellectual Disabilities (ASSID).

Nulsen Connect 2010 - 2011
In the year to come the program will be fully 
implemented in all Nulsen homes, which will 
involve training of the large number of 
remaining staff and the implementation of 
PCPs for the existing Residents. Strategies 
used during the past year will be reviewed  
in an effort to develop effective ways of 
training all staff in each house at the same 
time. The Nulsen Connect Training Manual 
will be finalised to provide the disability 
sector with a training curriculum for 
managers and direct support staff for 
organisations wishing to improve the quality 
of their services and the quality of life of the 
people they serve.

Preston Sudlow, Youth Patron.
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NB:  Figure for 2004-2005 includes $190,000 in relation to a single claim.  Total of seven open workers’ compensation 
claims as at 30/6/2010: two in 2008-2009; and five in 2009-2010.
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Nulsen Support
Human Resources (HR)
HR remains an area of major change and 
growth as the implementation of the 
Rostering system ‘Riteq’ has been 
progressively rolled out to all the homes 
during the year. The installation of computers 
to each home was required to enable the 
Biometric Identification System to operate 
and allowed the Association to bring services 
on line with other information systems of the 
organisation such as TRIM and e-mails. 

A major review of the HR area was 
undertaken with the assistance of external 
consultants in order to ensure that this area 
was properly resourced to handle the 
predicted growth over the next four years. 
The review identified the importance of 
properly resourcing HR and the need to 
have streamlined and robust policies and 
procedures in place and understood 
throughout the Association. With some 
minor restructuring the HR team is now 
geared up to support the potential 
doubling of staff numbers through the 
Association Growth Strategy Plan and work 
closely with departments on their current 
and long term needs.

As noted earlier in this report, Central 
Institute of Technology was commissioned  
to undertake the development of a 
competency framework and training plan  
for the Association. Once finalised, the 
appointment of a Training Manager will be 
undertaken to integrate Central and Nulsen 
with regards to training and development 
strategies. The Association thanks Anne 
Blythman, Kathryn Clews, Ches Leonard and 
the lectures of Central for their support and 
guidance over the past year. It has been 
invaluable as we move towards a learning 
organisation culture. 

strain, bruised toes and a re-occurring frozen 
shoulder claim. Injuries tend to be spread 
across service areas and not limited to one 
service location or type. The Associations 
target for claims remains at 0 incidents. 28 
claims occurred this year which averages out 
to seven claims per 100 employees. This is 
one claim higher than the previous year; 
however the average cost of the claims has 
significantly reduced this year. The graphs on 
page 19 provide the claims and cost history 
for the year. 

Independent Administration (IA)
Heather Blyth, Senior Accountant, has 
overseen the growth of IA to a point where it 
now provides accounting and book keeping 
support to 16 not-for-profit associations. IA is 
being geared for major expansion in 2011 as 
the increased focus in the sector is on good 
financial governance which means there is a 
growing need for these services. 

Karen Malyon, Manager of Payroll Services, 
along with her team, provides payroll 
support to 30 non-government agencies.  
As with the accounting services, we 
anticipate further growth of this area in the 
future as the business planning for growth  
is implemented. 

In order to prepare for the growth of this 
service, an additional dedicated manager 
will be appointed to run the service and 
drive the business development of IA. The 
Association is looking to establish this 
service on more commercial grounds and 
separate the Associations requirements from 
the IA business. Both Commonwealth and 
State Governments are interested in seeing 
more services like IA provided and we will be 
discussing additional growth opportunities 
during the year. 

The main focus of the HR area continues to 
be the employment and retention of staff 
required for Nulsen to implement its Growth 
Strategy over the next four years. There is no 
doubt that the Association, like many other 
organisations in the disability sector, is 
bracing itself for employment shortages as 
growth in the mining sector takes hold. 

The Association continues to lobby 
government for improved wages for support 
workers and is committed to seeing support 
workers in the disability field qualified and 
recognised for the important work they do. 

CATegory STATiSTiCS

No. Current Employees 360

No. Employed 1/7/09 – 30/6/10 108

Resignations 20

No. Full Time 193

No. Part Time 61

No. Relief Staff 101

eMPLoyMeNT STATiSTiCS

Nulsen is unable to provide our direct care services without the background 
support of our dedicated and passionate Support teams which include Human 
Resources, Maintenance, Public Relations and Marketing and our 
administration teams.

Whilst we understand and respect that 
different parts of our sector have differing 
needs, we continue to be training orientated 
given the very complex support services we 
are required to provide. 

Workers Compensation
Given the nature of the work we do, 
providing safe systems and working 
environments for Residents and staff is 
paramount. The Association has appointed  
a full time Safety Officer to assist with the 
management of safety and workers 
compensation across the organisation. 
Currently there are seven open claims of 
which two occurred in 2008-2009 and five in 
2009-2010. Two of these claims relate to the 
same person albeit different injuries. Claims 
include hand injury, lower back strain, neck 

Total Incurred Costs        Premium        Premium as % Wages

Average Cost        # Claims        # Claims / 100 Employees
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In Summary
This report presents a comprehensive 
overview of the Associations operational 
activities during the year. Support provided 
to Residents and Service Users requires a 
complex array of systems, supports and 
services, and I am confident that the 
performance of the Association this year has 
demonstrated its staff member’s 
comprehensive skills and knowledge in the 
disability services field. 

As with the Chairperson, I will not single out 
any one person in my thanks but would like 
to express my sentiment of gratitude and 
confidence in the staff employed at all levels 
within Nulsen. I am truly privileged to be 
working with such a rich and diverse group 
of people that are committed to the 
organisation’s mission. It has been a very 
busy and at times stressful and frustrating 
year for all concerned as we continue to 
strive for excellence in the delivery of quality 
services to people with high support needs. 
Notwithstanding this, our members should 
be reassured in the abilities of those 
employed across the Association; in the main 
they strive to “do the right thing” by people 
with disabilities, within a limited resource 
and complex environment; and they do it 
well and competently. 

Again, I have been well supported by our 
Chairperson and Board of Directors who 
appropriately challenge and take interest in 
the many activities, strategic and operational, 
across the Association. I think this has been 
one of the more strategically focused years I 
can remember in my 26 years with Nulsen as 
we look towards the next five years. I thank 
all members of the Board for their continued 
confidence in me and their staff at all levels 
of Nulsen. 

We go forward together confidently to “do 
the right thing” by people with disabilities, 
their families and carers in Western Australia. 
Challenges ahead, certainly; an optimistic 
future, definitely; and the utmost faith in the 
Nulsen community, and those who support 
our cause, to ensure that the needs of our 
most vulnerable citizens are ethically and 
responsibly supported.

Maintenance
Under the guidance of Maintenance 
Manager Tony Hawks the Maintenance team 
of Alex Hodge, Rod Pennings, Val Ferber and  
Warren King have been involved with several 
major house renovations on top of their 
normal program of repairs and maintenance 
on our 23 properties. Crawford Street was 
extensively renovated as part of the growth 
strategy and Eudoria St demolished in 
preparation for new building works.

Given the building works required for 
existing and new services, Rod Pennings is 
assisting the Service Development team  
full time. The next 18 months will see five 
building projects on line and three 
refurbishments for the growth in 
accommodation services. 

Early Engagement with  
Carers Project (EECP)
The increased demand for accommodation 
for people with disabilities has led Nulsen to 
develop an initiative that seeks to ensure the 
best outcomes in accommodation service 
delivery for the person with disability plus 
their carers/families. For all those people  
the transition from the family home into 
accommodation in the community, is a life 
changing event.

The EECP team of Dr Judith Davis, Lois 
Gatley, Clare Masolin and Beth Marchbank 
has conducted a thorough consultation 
process with carers, families, men and 
siblings. They have developed a ‘good 
practice’ model which aims to ensure that 
within all phases of the transition from 
home, carers/families will be included, their 
expertise, knowledge, information and skills 
will inform staff and ensure the ongoing 

relationships of all parties will be enduring 
and meaningful to benefit the person with  
a disability. The model’s aim is to emphasise 
partnership in care.

Once the model is trialled and evaluated, 
plus resources developed to support carers, 
Nulsen will promote the model across the 
sector firstly, to broaden the benefits 
afforded to families and secondly, as a tool 
for compliance with the Carer’s Recognition 
Act 2004 and the Carers Charter.

Nulsen Ladies Auxiliary
Our dedicated ladies in Perth and Waroona 
have been busy raising funds for the 
Association over the past year. The Perth ladies 
have kept the Nulsen Haven Opportunity 
Shop running and have donated money to 
the Association’s Make a Wish Program.

Our Waroona ladies made a donation to the 
Association at their Annual Birthday party in 
August which was gratefully accepted.

We thank the tireless fundraising and 
promotional efforts of our ladies and all that 
support them. Their funds make a significant 
contribution to providing people with 
financial support for holidays, personal items 
and specialist equipment to name a few. 
Thank you ladies and we look forward to 
working with you again in 2011. 

Staff Awards Program
In its fifth year, the Associations Staff 
Awards & Recognition program continues 
to recognise, reward and encourage 
employees for excellence in the day to day 
performance of their respective roles. We 
congratulate our 2009 Employee of the 
Year, Support Worker Rosemary Rice who 
works at Charlesworth Estate.

Website
We launched or new look website www.
nulsen.com.au in early June, receiving very 
positive responses from families, supporters 
and staff alike. The new website boasts many 
new features, including a search function 
and information for families seeking services. 
The site will be further expanded to include 
Board and Staff portals in the future this will 
allow staff and Board Members to access 
internal documents and information external 
to the local IT system. Other links to relevant 
websites will be brought online as required. 

Homebuyers Centre
In March 2010 the Association announced a 
strategic partnership that will provide Nulsen 
with many benefits as it commences its 
Growth Strategy.

Nulsen and Homebuyers Centre (HBC), a 
specialist West Australian home builder for first 
home buyers, has committed to a minimum 
five year partnership that will provide effective 
insights and benefits to both organisations.

This is an exciting and ambitious time for 
Nulsen as we work towards providing 
accommodation to an extra 108 people with 
disabilities currently living in critical need in 
the Western Australian community within 
the next four years.

Nulsen secured funding to provide a 
service to 108 families on the critical need 
wait list, however the funds do not include 
the capital to invest in a building program, 
to purchase land and build the 
approximate 20 accommodation homes 
that will be required.

With the extensive building expertise and 
knowledge of staff at Homebuyers Centre, 
the Association is certainly grateful for the 
generosity and timely offer of assistance 
given by the Centre. 

gordon Trewern
Chief Executive Officer
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Nulsen Training
Two Scholarships were again provided to 
Staff at Notre Dame University for the 
Graduate Certificate in Not for Profit 
Management. In 2010-2011 we hope to be 
able to continue to offer two places in this 
course plus a placement in Speech 
Pathology and Occupational Therapy.

The Association has not replaced the 
position of Training Coordinator during the 
2010 year given the work commissioned and 
outlined previously in this report by the 
Central Institute of Technology in developing 
a Competency Framework and Training Plan. 
This commissioned work will be completed 
and endorsed by the end of 2010 and at that 
time the appropriate structure will be 
implemented. The Association views Central 
as being our main training provider and will 
be working to see the two organisations 
strategically work together to achieve 
positive training outcomes for disability 
support workers. 

The ongoing support with the delivery of 
Certificate III and Certificate IV in Disability 
Work continues with Central Institute of 
Technology delivering 37 sessions in the year 
with 365 staff participants. 

WORKSHOP
NUMBER  

OF SESSIONS
STAFF 

ATTENDANCE

Induction 11 115

Wheelchair Strapping 19 155

Duty of Care 11 101

Manual Handling 22 164

Epilepsy 10 99

Seating & Positioning 11 102

Infection Control 5 59

Mealtime Management 12 76

First Aid 22 163

Medication / Suppository 
/ Gastronomy / Other

19 137

Fire Evacuation Safety 18 162

OHS / Fire Safety Training 11 81

Enabling Connections 3 49

Traineeship Certificate III 
& IV

37 365

External Training Room 
bookings

25

TrAiNiNg ACTiviTieS ANd iNiTiATive

Sites

The table above provides an overview of 
training activities and initiatives during the 
year. Suffice to say that training is an 
integral part of the organisation’s culture 
and mandate. 

Developing a skilled workforce provides the  
best possible outcomes for our residents, service 
users and colleagues.
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Celebrating People

Far left: Graham Holman, our Deputy  
CEO has been with Nulsen since 1990. 
Nothing gives him more joy than a  
balanced spreadsheet!
Left: ‘My top two experiences after 
visiting Herald Ave: 1. Rocking out on 
Guitar Hero with Julian and Josh and  
2. Talking and laughing around the table 
with all the residents as I felt included 
and felt like I was inclusive to the other 
residents.’ Liam O’Shea (left) lets Preston 
try and compete against Julian’s guitar 
skills. Julian reigned supreme!
Above left: Peta enjoys her involvement 
with domestic duties around her home.
Above right: Youth Patron Adam Birman 
really enjoyed his first meeting with  
Josh; they continued to catch up during 
the year.
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Elizabeth Schnaars likes to look her best. Lucky for her, support worker/style guru, 
Luis Lozano is a whiz with the hairbrush.

Gail Shearer enjoys relaxing and unwinding in her bedroom. She 
often enjoys other relaxing moments including head massages, 
Bowen therapy and creative art sessions.

Vanessa Elliott enjoys assisting 
residents in the kitchen. These 
yummy cupcakes were made by 
Vanessa and Suzan Hayes and 
enjoyed by our fabulous 
photographer Robert Frith of 
Acorn Photography, Steve 
Binnie of First Nature Design, 
and maybe Debbie King, Nulsen 
Marketing & PR enjoyed the odd 
one too!
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Left: Michael Sinclair is the epitome of a Dockers fan. Since day one he has been a member and has not missed 
a home game nor missed an away game on the TV, here he is off to a home game with Wioletta Jedras. For his 
50th birthday earlier this year he received extra special treatment from a number of players at a training 
session. Michael is still smiling today after the Dockers’ successful 2010 season. 
Above top: Rosie Haynes and support worker Isabella Galafassi enjoy spending one-on-one time together and 
the odd mischievous giggle.
Above: Attendances at Blue Gum Music Workshops have grown over the past year, more than 25 people of all 
abilities from all over the community attend each week. 
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Delores Purdie and Jen Murray have a mutual friendship and affection. Delores looks forward and anticipates 
time that they can spend together in the community and at Victoria Park Arts.

Jeremy Richards and Celia Elliot attend art sessions at the 
Victoria Park Arts Centre each week where they share a 
common language. Celia makes careful and thoughtful 
selections of the materials she wants to use and creates 
vibrant, textural works each week.
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Kathy Rouse is a member of Nulsen’s Creative & Cultural Development team and spends 
most Tuesdays at City Farm volunteering with many of our residents. Greg Barr attends 
every Tuesday and helps out in the nursery sewing seeds and potting new plants. Greg is 
also an excellent didgeridoo player and often entertains other volunteers and staff at 
City Farm.

Top left: David Anderson is always up for a card game or interactive board game. Here he is giving our 2009 
Employee of the Year Rosemary Rice a run for her money in Connect 4.
Top right: Bryce Luff made a pot of pumpkin soup at home and shared it with fellow workers and 
volunteers at a City Farm soup luncheon. Bryce is a regular volunteer at the Farm, as is the luncheon! 
Bottom left: Greg Offer started attending City Farm this year. It’s been an amazing journey for Greg who 
is usually quite reserved and likes to keep to himself - all this changes the moment he enters City Farm. 
He’s forged great friendships with Greg, Kathy and another Volunteer Norm and has became a member of 
the gardening team. Greg visits every Wednesday and has the job of watering and fertilizing the nursery. He 
enjoys this and shows the staff by holding the watering can and holding their hand during the activity. This 
activity brings the best out in Greg.
Bottom right: A shared moment at the City Farm soup luncheon
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Left: Simon Allen and Musonda Mumba take a bike ride after a creative session at the Victoria 
Park Centre of the Arts. Simon enjoys a bike ride most days.
Top: Edie Dawson is a Nulsen Life Member and has been a volunteer at the Nulsen Op Shop since 
the year the shop doors opened in 1967.
Above left: Stephan Van Vlijmen, Director Accommodation, and Shelley Bingham, Accounts Officer 
discuss the important topic of whats for morning tea at the NUlsen head office !
Above right: Our 2010 Hale School Youth Patrons, Adam, Preston, Robert and Liam visited 
Lorraine Stevens at her home and enjoyed catching up with her during the year at many Hale 
School events and Nulsen functions.
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Chris White is keen to assist in any activity 
around his home. He often helps with 
washing; he assists by lifting clothes from 
the clothes basket with his feet to pass to 
staff members. Chris often plays quoits to 
keep his skill and accuracy up. Here he plays 
with Martin Gaturu.

Nulsen’s 2009 Employee of the Year, Rosemary Rice 
is a great supporter of the Annual Charlesworth 
Spring Fair. Gillian Deague is helping to pot plants 
to sell at this years Fair.

Along with housemates, Julian Skewes enjoys tending to 
the raised garden bed in the backyard. At the moment 
Julian is growing potato’s, corn and a variety of herbs. 
There is a sense of pride and achievement when he gets 
to cook and eat his home grown produce.

Russell Ah-Kim enjoys taking part in household chores 
and will often help to hang out and fold his washing. 
Kim McDonough is assisting him to do that here.
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member of the Tax Institute of Australia. He is 
also a member of the Australian Institute of 
Pharmacy Management.

Joe is also a member of the Finance 
Committee.

This is Joe’s first year as a member on the 
Board of Directors.

Mr Ken Palmer  
BOARD DIRECTOR

Ken joined the Board of Directors in 2006. Ken 
has 35 years experience both nationally and 
internationally in commercial industry, 
extensive international marketing, business  
and accounting experience and 20 years 
experience in a professional Director capacity.

Ken was appointed to the Cooperative Bulk 
Handling Board in 2002 having been a Grain 
Pool Director from 1993 – 2002. Ken 
currently holds professional directorships 
with CBH, the Grain Pool, United Bulk 
Carriers P/L, Agracorp P/l and MG Kailis 
Holdings P/L.

Current & Previous positions held at Nulsen 
include  Chair Governance Sub Committee.

Ken has held a position on the Board of 
Directors for the past 3 Years.

Mrs Mariani Peck  
BOARD DIRECTOR

Mariani is new to the Nulsen Board of 
Directors in 2010 although has been 
involved with Nulsen for the past year when 
in 2009 her daughter moved to an 
Association home.

Mariani has worked for the past 15 years 
with PathWest, currently in the Microbiology 
Department at QEII Nedlands as a Medical 
Scientist. Prior to this Mariani has worked at 
Princess Margaret Hospital and King Edward 
Memorial Hospital for Women after 
graduating from Curtin University with a 
Bachelor of Applied Science. 

This is Mariani’s first year as a member on 
the Board of Directors.

Mr Eric Goddard BOARD ADVISOR

Eric has been involved with Nulsen since 
1975 when he became a member on the 
Building & Maintenance Committee. 

Eric has held the position of President, 
Nulsen Board of Directors for four terms and 
has contributed greatly to the development 
of the Associations Mission Statement, 
Governing Principles and Policies and 
transition of Nulsen residents from traditional 
custodial care to community living.

Mr Aart Plug  
CHAIRMAN

Aart joined the Board of Directors in 1999 
shortly after his daughter transferred to a 
Nulsen accommodation service.

Aart has served as a parent representative 
on the Boston Redevelopment Steering 
Committee and was involved with the 
closure of the Disability Services 
Commission Boston Hostel.

Aart is the current Curriculum Officer at 
John Calvin Christian College.

Current & Previous positions held at Nulsen 
include, President, Vice President, Chair 
Staffing Training & Development Sub 
Committee, Strategic Planning Steering 
group, Governance Sub Committee

Aart has held a position on the Board of 
Directors for the past 11 Years.

Mrs Fiona Grealish  
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

Fiona joined the Board of Directors in 1995 after 
working at Nulsen for more than eight years. 

Fiona has a Certificate in Training the 
Handicapped, 1987, and was employed by 
Nulsen in 1988 as a Support Worker and later 
as a now titled Residential Services Manager 
at one of the Associations group homes.

Fiona is currently employed as a Teachers 
Aide with the Education Department.

Current & Previous positions held at Nulsen 
include Vice President, Building Maintenance 
Sub Committee.

Fiona has held a position on the Board of 
Directors for the past 15 Years

Mr Richard Curry  
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

Richard joined the Board of Directors in 2005 
after 27 years of service with the WA State 
Public Service, retiring as Director General, 
Department of Indigenous Affairs.

Richards career includes; Director Policy & 
Planning Department for Aboriginal Affairs, 
Director Disability Services Commission, 
Superintendent at State Juvenile Remand & 
Assessment Centre and Senior Policy & 
Research Officer with Department for 
Community Services. Richard currently runs his 
own business, Richard Curry Consulting Pty Ltd.

Current & Previous positions held at Nulsen 
include, Chair Strategic Planning Sub 
Committee, Finance Sub Committee, 
Governance Sub Committee

Richard has held a position on the Board of 
Directors for the past 5 Years.

Mrs Viv Huntsman  
BOARD DIRECTOR

Viv joined the Board of Directors in 2007 
following the transition of her son to live in  
a Nulsen accommodation home.

Viv has been involved with a group called 
‘Parents of People with Disabilities’ which 
lead to her being part of the inaugural 
Authority of Intellectually Handicapped, Post 
School Options Working party and the 
Developmental Disability Committee. Viv 
was an inaugural member of the WA 
Advisory Council for Disability Services and 
appointed to the WA Lottery’s Community 
Grant Committee and the AIH South-West 
Advisory Council. Other positions include 
Canning Councils Disability Advisory 
Committee and President of Castlereagh 
School Council.

Viv has held a position on the Board of 
Directors for the past 3 Years.

Mr Max Kousins  
BOARD DIRECTOR

Max has been involved with Nulsen for 
many years as his brother became a resident 
of Nulsen in 1960. Max joined the Board of 
Directors in 2002.

Max is a trained Industrial Chemist, worked 
in the mining industry and has taught 
Chemistry and Physics before completing an 
MBA and working as an Investment Advisor 
and Stock Broker. 

Max is currently running a private 
Investment company which includes 
property management and development.

Current & Previous positions held at Nulsen 
include, Finance Sub Committee, Governance 
Sub Committee, Superannuation Sub Committee 
and Nulsen Foundation Board Member

Max has held a position on the Board of 
Directors for the past 8 Years.

Mr Joe Lamhut  
BOARD DIRECTOR

Joe is new to the Nulsen Board of Directors 
in 2010 although has been involved with 
Nulsen for the past three years as a member 
of the Finance Committee.

Joe is the Managing Director of Walker 
Wayland WA and has 27 years experience, 
mainly in the areas of business development, 
marketing, business and business structuring. 
Joe is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in Australia, a registered tax 
agent, a registered Company Auditor and a 

Eric has semi retired from Western Power, 
continuing with contract work as an Engineer. 

Current & Previous positions held at Nulsen 
include, President (four terms), Vice 
President, Chair Finance Sub Committee, 
Building & Maintenance Sub Committee, 
Chair Nulsen Foundation.

Eric has held a position on the Board of 
Directors for the past 35 Years.

Mr Gordon Trewern 
CHIEF ExECUTIVE OFFICER, Ex-OFFICIO

Gordon first commenced employment at 
Nulsen in 1982 as a Support Worker and was 
appointed Coordinator Accommodation 
Services in 1989. He was appointed Director 
in 1994.

Gordon is widely involved with disability sector 
issues, sitting on a number of state and 
national committees both in government and 
the non government arenas. Of particular note 
is his current position on the National Disability 
Services Board.

Current & Previous positions held at Nulsen 
include, Finance Sub Committee, Governance 
Sub Committee, Staffing Training & 
Development Sub Committee, Building & 
Maintenance Sub Committee, Superannuation 
Sub Committee, Strategic Planning Sub 
Committee, Nulsen Foundation.

Gordon has held a position on the Board of 
Directors for the past 21 Years.

Mr Graham Holman  
DEPUTY CHIEF ExECUTIVE OFFICER, Ex-OFFICIO

Graham commenced employed at Nulsen in 
1991 as the principal Finance Officer and 
General Manager Corporate Services.

Graham is a member of the Board of the 
Developmental Disability Council (DDC), has 
participated in a number of Disability 
Services Commission (DSC) working parties 
and has conducted training sessions on 
board governance and financial 
management for the health department. 
Graham also oversees the Associations 
Independent Administration business and 
consults with many not for profit Board and 
finance committees.

Current & Previous positions held at Nulsen 
include, Finance Sub Committee, Staffing, 
Development & Training Sub Committee, 
Building & Maintenance Sub Committee, 
Nulsen Foundation.

Graham has held a position on the Board  
of Directors for the past 20 Years.

Board of Directors

Ken 
Palmer 

Joe  
Lamhut 

Viv  
Huntsman 

Max 
Kousins 

Richard 
Curry

Mariani 
Peck

Aart  
Plug 

Fiona  
Grealish

Graham  
Holman

Gordon 
Trewern

Eric 
Goddard
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boArd oF direCTor’S MANAgeMeNT MeeTiNg SCHedULe & ATTeNdANCe 09/10

MeMber roLe APPoiNTed j A S o N d F M A M j

Aart Plug Chairman 1999 Y Y  Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Fiona Grealish Deputy Chairman 1995 Y Y A Y Y A A A Y Y A

Richard Curry Deputy Chairman 2005 Y Y LA LA Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Eric Goddard Board Advisor 1975 Y LA LA Y Y Y Y Y Y Y LA

Viv Huntsman 2007 Y Y Y A Y A Y Y A Y Y

Max Kousins 2003 Y LA LA LA Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Ken Palmer 2006 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y LA Y Y

Joe Lamhut 2010 - - - - - - Y Y Y Y A

Mariani Peck 2010 - - - - - - Y Y Y Y Y

Grace Parker (resigned) 2002 A  A A Y A - - - - - -

John Youens (resigned) Chairman 2006 LA Y Y Y A - - - - - -

Gordon Trewern C.E.O. / Ex Officio 1989 Y LA Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Graham Holman Deputy CEO / Ex Officio 1990 Y Y Y Y LA Y Y LA Y Y LA

Sonia Mackay (Steno) 2009 Y Y Y Y Y LA Y Y Y Y Y

Michelle Mattner (Steno) 2009 - - - - - Y - - - -

Y: Yes       A: Apologies       LA: Leave of Absence       S: Sick
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The Board of Management presents the financial report of Nulsen Haven Association (Inc) for the financial year ended 30 June 2010.

Board of Management

The names of the Board of Management members throughout the year and at the date of this report are:

Aart Plug 
Fiona Grealish  
Richard Curry  
Viv Huntsman 
Max Kousins 
Ken Palmer 
Joe Lamhut 
Mariani Peck 
Eric Goddard (Board Advisor)

Principal Activities

The Association’s principal activities during the year were the provision of:

•	 long-term	residential	support	for	people	with	disabilities;

•	 support	to	enable	people	with	disabilities	to	participate	in	recreational	and	community	activities;

•	 clinical	and	medical	support	for	residents;	and,

•	 bookkeeping	and	payroll	services	to	small	not-for-profit	organisations.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the association’s activities during the year.

Operating Result and Review of Operations

The operating result for the year was a surplus of $264,826 (2009 $434,321). The association is exempt from income tax.

A detailed review of operations can be found in the annual report.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

In the opinion of the Board of Management, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the association that occurred 
during the financial year under review not otherwise disclosed in this report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Management.

Aart Plug 
Chairman

Dated this 28 day of September 2010.

Board of Management Report 
for the year ended 30 June 2010

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2010

Notes 2010 
$

2009  
$

Continuing Operations
Operating Grants 2(a) 16,968,343 14,704,767
Fees from clients   1,830,004   1,598,090
Independent Administration      295,585      239,074
Donation ,bequests and fundraising income 2(b)      277,609      225,542

other income
Interest      226,850      209,244
Gain on disposal of fixed assets        42,556        60,880
Other sundry income           181,174      139,890

Revenue and Other Income 19,822,121 17,177,487

Operating Expenses
Accommodation support  and Intensive family support 2(c,d,e)  16,595,150 14,879,506
Therapy expenses  2(c,d,f )       683,386      437,068
Recreation and community support costs 2(c,d)    1,041,030      935,367
Program development expenses 2(c,d)       184,000        14,412

other expenses
Fundraising expenses 2(g)        83,528        83,822
Self funded initiatives expenses      714,196      401,606
Finance Costs 2(c)            -        12,092
Depreciation 2(c)      650,005      554,515 

Expenditure 19,951,295 17,318,388

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year From Continuing Operations     (129,174)    (140,901)

Income Received to Fund Capital Purchases
Capital subsidies 2(h)      394,000      575,222
Total Income Received to Fund Capital Purchases      394,000      575,222

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year      264,826       434,321

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Statement of Financial Position 
as at 30 June 2010

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2010

Notes 2010 
$

2009  
$

Current Assets

Cash  and Cash Equivalents 4 4,156,917 3,572,230
Trade and Other Receivables 5    204,719    239,631

Total Current Assets 4,361,636 3,811,861

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 6 4,714,879 4,594,483
Available for sale financial assets           207           207

Total Non-Current Assets 4,715,086 4,594,690

Total Assets 9,076,722 8,406,551

Current Liabilities

Trade Creditors and Other Payables 7 1,623,106 1,608,794
Deferred Income 8    396,764    396,408
Provisions  10(a) 2,028,761 1,647,566

Total Current Liabilities 4,048,631 3,652,768

Non-Current Liabilities

Borrowings 9                0      83,378
Provisions 10(b)    581,834    488,974

Total Non-Current Liabilities    581,834    572,352

Total Liabilities 4,630,465 4,225,120

Net Assets 4,446,257 4,181,431

Equity 

Retained Earnings 11(a) 4,371,202 4,106,376
Reserves 11(b)      75,055      75,055
Total Equity 4,446,257 4,181,431

Retained 
Earnings 

$

 
Reserves 

$

 
Total 

$

Opening Balance at 1 July 2008 3,672,055     75,055 3,747,110

Total comprehensive income for the year    434,321          0    434,321

Balance at 30 June 2009 4,106,376     75,055 4,181,431

Total comprehensive income for the year    264,826          0    264,826

Balance at 30 June 2010 4,371,202     75,055 4,446,257

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 
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Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 30 June 2010

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2010

Note 2010 
$

2009  
$

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts From:
      Operating Grant income  17,138,896  13,208,650
      Independent Administration       295,585       239,074
      Fees from clients    1,830,004    1,598,090
      Interest Income       226,850       209,244
      Donations, bequests and fundraising       277,609       225,542
      Other Sundry Income       255,905       137,702
      Deferred Income
Payments to suppliers & employees   (19,022,939) (14,042,529)

Net Cash provided by operating activities 13    1,001,910    1,575,773

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

      Proceeds from sale of property, plant &  equipment        391,431       300,219
      Payment for property, plant & equipment    (1,119,276)   (1,041,814)

      Net cash used in investing activities      (727,845)      (741,595)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

      Repayment of borrowings        (83,378)          (4,084)
      Proceeds from Capital Grants       394,000       575,222

      Net cash provided by financing activities       310,622        571,138

      Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents         584,687    1,405,316

       Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the  
Financial Year

   3,572,230    2,166,914

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Financial Year           4, 13    4,156,917    3,572,230

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

The financial statements cover Nulsen Haven Association (Inc) as an individual entity. Nulsen Haven Association (Inc) is an association 
incorporated in Western Australia under the Associations Incorporation Act 1987.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

  A. BASIS OF PREPARATION

   The financial statements are general purpose financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with the Australian 
Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and the Associations Incorporation Act 1987. 

   Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial statements 
containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions to which they apply. 

   First Time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to Australian Reporting Standards

   Nulsen Haven Association (Inc) has prepared financial statements in accordance with the Australian equivalents to International 
Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) from 1 July 2009. These financial statements are the first to be prepared in accordance with AIFRS. 

   In accordance with the requirements of AASB 1: First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting 
Standards, where necessary, adjustments to the accounts resulting from the introduction of AIFRS have been applied retrospectively to 
2009 comparative figures, excluding cases where optional exemptions under AASB 1 have been applied. 

   There were no adjustments on comparative figures for the impact of the adoption of AIFRS.

   The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and are based on historical cost, modified, where applicable, by the 
measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.

   The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial 
statements are presented below and have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

 B.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

   The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of 
which form the basis of making the judgments. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

   The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods.

  Key judgements

  (i) Leases

    The Association has entered into leases of houses with the Department of Housing as disclosed in Note 14.  Management has 
determined that all of the risks and rewards of ownership of these houses remains with the lessor and has therefore classified the 
leases as operating leases.

  Key estimates

  (i) Provisions

    Provisions for employee benefits payable after 12 months from the reporting date are based on future wage and salary levels, 
experience of employee departures, and periods of service as discussed in Note 1(j). The amount of these provisions would change 
should any of these factors change in the next 12 months.                                                                                                                                      

 C. REVENUE RECOGNITION

   Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade discounts and 
volume rebates allowed. Any consideration deferred is treated as the provision of finance and is discounted at a rate of interest that is 
generally accepted in the market for similar arrangements. The difference between the amount initially recognised and the amount 
ultimately received is interest revenue. All revenue is stated net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax (GST).

  revenue from fundraising

  Donations

  Donations are recognised when received.

  Legacies

   Legacies are recognised when the association is notified of an impending distribution or when the legacy is received, whichever  
occurs earlier. 
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  revenue from government funding

   The Associations accommodation, recreation and community support and therapy support programs are supported by grants received 
from the Disability Services Commission. Grants received on the condition that specified services are delivered, or conditions are 
fulfilled, are considered reciprocal. Such grants are initially recognised as a liability, and revenue is recognised as services are performed 
or conditions fulfilled. Revenue from non-reciprocal grants is recognised when received.

  Fees from residents

  Fees charged to residents are recognised when the service is provided.

  Asset sales

   The gain or loss on disposal of all non-current assets is determined as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset at the 
time of disposal and the net proceeds on disposal.

  in-kind donations

   Goods donated to the Association are included at the fair value to the Association where this can be quantified. No amounts are 
included in the financial statements for services donated by volunteers.

  interest revenue

   Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the 
instrument.

 (D) ExPENDITURE

   All expenditure is accounted for on an accrual basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all costs related to the 
category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to a particular category they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent 
with use of resources.

  (i)  Accommodation support and intensive family support expenses are those expenses incurred in supporting people with 
disabilities in accommodation facilities.

  (II)  Recreation and community support expenses are those expenses incurred in supporting people with disabilities to access 
recreation and community activities.

  (iii)  Therapy support expenses are those expenses incurred in providing therapy support to people with disabilities within the 
Association’s facilities. The Community Aids and Equipment program (CAEP) expenses are included in this area.

  (iv) Program development expenses are those expenses incurred in the expansion of the Association.

  (v)  Fundraising expenses are those expenses incurred in seeking voluntary contributions by donations or sale of goods and do not 
include costs of disseminating information relating to the activities carried on by the Association.

  (vi)  Self funded initiatives expenses are those expenses incurred as a result of activities undertaken by the Association which are 
funded predominantly from the Association’s resources. These activities include Independent Administration, Creative Development 
Program, Blue Gum Recreation Centre management, Cooke Street house rental and other non recurring projects.

  (vii) Finance costs are those expenses directly incurred as a result of financing activities.

 (E) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

   Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less. 

   Cash and term deposits relating to the resident’s trust account is included in the cash and cash equivalents of the Association. There is a 
corresponding liability of an equal amount as these funds are held in trust for individual residents.

 (F) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

  initial recognition and measurement

   Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions for the instrument. 
For financial assets, this is the equivalent to the date that the association commits itself to either purchase or sell the asset (i.e. trade date 
accounting is adopted).

   Financial instruments are initially measured at the fair value plus transaction costs except where the instrument is classified ‘at fair value 
through profit or loss’ in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss immediately.

  Classification and subsequent measurement

   Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the effective interest rate method or cost. Fair value 
represents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties. Where 
available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

  Amortised cost is calculated as:

  (i) The amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition;

  (ii) Less principal repayments;

  (iii)  Plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount initially recognised and the maturity 
amount calculated using the effective interest method; and

  (iv) Less any reduction for impairment

   The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period and is equivalent to the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) 
through the expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financial instrument to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to 
the carrying value with a consequential recognition of an income or expense in profit or loss.

  (i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

    Financial assets are classified at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ when they are held for trading for the purpose of short-term profit 
taking, where they are derivatives not held for hedging purposes, or when they are designated as such to avoid an accounting 
mismatch or to enable performance evaluation where a group of financial assets is managed by key personnel on a fair value basis 
in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value 
with changes in carrying value being included in profit or loss.

  (ii) Loans and receivables

    Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

    Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for those which are not expected to mature within 12 months after the 
end of the reporting period, which will be classified as non-current assets.

  (iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

    Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either not capable of being classified into other 
categories of financial assets due to their nature, or they are designated as such by management. They comprise investments in the 
equity of other entities where there is neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable payments.

    Available-for-sale financial assets are included in non-current assets, except for those which are expected to be disposed of within 12 
months after the end of the reporting period, which will be classified as current assets.

  (iv) Financial liabilities

    Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

  Fair value

   Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to determine the fair 
value for all unlisted securities, including recent arm’s length transactions, with reference to similar instruments and option pricing 
models.

  impairment

   At the end of each reporting period, the association assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been 
impaired. In the case of available-for-sale financial instruments, a prolonged decline in the value of the instrument is considered to 
determine whether impairment has arisen. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

  derecognition

   Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual right to the receipt of cash flows expires or the asset is transferred to another 
party whereby the entity no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset. 
Financial liabilities are derecognised where the related obligations are either discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference between 
the carrying value of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the fair value consideration paid, including 
the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

 (G) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

  basis of measurement of carrying amount

   Land and buildings are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation on buildings and less any impairment losses. Plant and 
equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and less any impairment losses.

   The cost of buildings constructed within the association includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing costs and an 
appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (cont..) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (cont..)
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   Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the association and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which 
they are incurred.

   Any property, plant and equipment donated to the Association or acquired for nominal cost is recognised at fair value at the date the 
Association obtains control of the asset.

  Only items of greater than $5,000 in value are capitalised in the balance sheet. 

  depreciation

   Items of property, plant and equipment (other than land) are depreciated over their useful lives to the Association commencing from 
the date the asset is purchased. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the expected useful economic lives of the assets 
as follows:

   Plant and Equipment 20% - 33% 
   Furniture   20% 
   Motor Vehicles 20% 
   Buildings  2.5%

  The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance date.

  impairment

   The carrying amount of Plant & Equipment is reviewed annually by the Board to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable amount 
from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the assets’ 
employment and subsequent disposal. .

   Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The asset is then written down to its 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the comprehensive income statement.

  derecognition and disposal

   An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal, when the item is no longer used in the operations of the 
Association or when it has no sale value. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

   Any part of the asset revaluation reserve attributable to the asset disposed of or derecognised is transferred to general funds at the date 
of disposal.

 (H) TRADE CREDITORS AND OTHER PAYABLES

   Trade creditors and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Association and were unpaid at the end 
of the reporting period. These amounts are usually settled in 30 days. The notional amount of the creditors and payables is deemed to 
reflect fair value.

 (I) DEFERRED INCOME

   The liability for deferred income is the unutilised amounts of grants received on the condition that specified services are delivered or 
conditions are fulfilled. The services are usually provided or the conditions usually fulfilled within 12 months of the receipt of the grant.  
Where a liability is incurred, the services or conditions will be satisfied within 12 months of the reporting date.

 (J) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

   Employee benefits comprise wages and salaries, annual, sick and long service leave, accrued days off and contributions to 
superannuation plans.

   Liabilities for wages and salaries expected to be settled within 12 months of balance date are recognised in other payables in respect of 
employees’ services up to the reporting date. Liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off in respect of employees’ services up to the 
reporting date which are expected to be settled within 12 months of balance date are recognised as a provision. Both amounts are 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

   Annual Leave entitlement is accrued based upon holiday entitlement at their nominal values using the remuneration rate expected to 
apply at the time of settlement plus 17.5% leave loading where applicable, plus an allowance for Superannuation and Workers 
Compensation premiums.

   Accrued Days Off entitlements are accrued and calculated under the relevant Industrial Awards and Work Place Agreements, plus an 
allowance for Superannuation and Workers Compensation premiums.

   The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected 
future payments to be made in respect of services provided up to the reporting date. Consideration is given to anticipated future wage 
and salary levels, experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market 
yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated 
future cash outflows. An allowance for superannuation and workers compensation is included.

   The Association pays contributions to certain defined contribution superannuation plans. Contributions are recognised as expenses 
when incurred. The Association has no obligation to pay further contributions to these plans if the plans do not hold sufficient assets to 
pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in current and prior periods.

 (K) PROVISIONS

   Provisions are recognised when the association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable 
that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions recognised represent the best 
estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.  

 (L) OPERATING LEASES

   Leases are classified as operating leases where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor. Operating lease payments 
are recognised as an expense in the comprehensive income statement on a straight line basis over the lease term.

 (M) BORROWING COSTS

   Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that necessarily take a substantial 
period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

   All other Borrowing Costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

   No borrowing costs have been capitalised in the financial year ended 30 June 2010.

 (N) INCOME TAx

   The Association is a charitable institution for the purposes of Australian taxation legislation and is therefore exempt from income tax. 
This exemption has been confirmed by the Australian Taxation Office. The Association holds deductible gift recipient status.

 (O) GOODS AND SERVICES TAx

   Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable 
from the Australian Taxation Office, in which case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of 
expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are recognised inclusive of GST.

   The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the Australian Taxation Office is included as part of receivables or payables.

   Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and 
financing activities which is recoverable from or payable to the Australian Taxation Office is classified as operating cash flows.

 (P) COMPARATIVE FIGURES

   When required by the Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the 
current financial year.

   Where the association has retrospectively applied an accounting policy, made a retrospective restatement or reclassified items in its 
financial statements, an additional statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period will be disclosed.

 (Q) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

  Mandatory Adoption

   During the current year, the association has adopted all of the new and revised Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations 
applicable to its operations which became mandatory.

   The adoption of these Standards has impacted the recognition, measurement and disclosure of certain transactions. The following is an 
explanation of the impact the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations has had on the financial statements of Nulsen Haven 
Association (Inc).

  AASb 101: Presentation of Financial Statements

   In September 2007, the Australian Accounting Standards Board revised AASB 101, and as a result there have been changes to the 
presentation and disclosures of certain information within the financial statements. Below is an overview of the key changes and the 
impact on the association’s financial statements.

  Disclosure impact

   Terminology changes – The revised version of AASB 101 contains a number of terminology changes, including the amendment of the 
names of the primary financial statements.

   Reporting changes in equity – The revised AASB 101 requires all changes in equity arising from transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners to be presented separately from non-owner changes in equity. Owner changes in equity are to be presented in the 
statement of changes in equity, with non-owner changes in equity presented in the statement of comprehensive income. The previous 
version of AASB 101 required that owner changes in equity and other comprehensive income be presented in the statement of 
changes in equity.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (cont..) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (cont..)
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   Statement of comprehensive equity – The revised AASB 101 requires all income and expenses to be presented in either one statement 
- the statement of comprehensive income, or two statements - a separate income statement and the statement of comprehensive 
income. The previous version of AASB 101 required only the presentation of a single income statement.

  The association’s financial statements now contain a statement of comprehensive income.

   Other comprehensive income – The revised version of AASB 101 introduces the concept of ‘other comprehensive income’ which 
comprises of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss as required by other Australian Accounting Standards. Items 
of other comprehensive income are to be disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income. Entities are required to disclose the 
income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income. The previous version of AASB 101 did not contain an 
equivalent concept.

  voluntary Adoption

   The Association has chosen to adopt AASB 8 Operating Segments applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 
2009, which introduces the “management approach” to segment reporting. Under this approach the Association has presented 
segment information in respect of its residential care, recreational and community support, administration, therapy services, fundraising 
and independent administration segments. Comparative segment information presented in Note 3 has been restated to conform to the 
requirements of the Accounting Standard.

 (R) NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR APPLICATION IN FUTURE PERIODS

   The AASB has issued new and amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have mandatory application dates for future 
reporting periods and which the association has decided to early adopt. A discussion of those future requirements and their impact on 
the association is as follows:

	 	 	•	 	AASB	9:	Financial	Instruments	and	AASB	2009-11:	Amendments	to	Australian	Accounting	Standards	arising	from	AASB	9	 
[AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Interpretations 10 & 12] (applicable for 
annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013).

    These Standards are applicable retrospectively and amend the classification and measurement of financial assets. The association 
has not yet determined any potential impact on the financial statements.

   The changes made to accounting requirements include:

   -  Simplifying the classifications of financial assets into those carried at amortised cost and those carried at fair value;

   - Simplifying the requirements for embedded derivatives

   - Removing the tainting rules associated with held-to-maturity assets;

   -  Removing the requirements to separate and fair value embedded derivatives for financial assets carried at amortised cost;

   -  Allowing an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on investments in equity instruments that are 
not held for trading in other comprehensive income. Dividends in respect to these investments that are a return on investment 
can be recognised in profit or loss and there is no impairment or recycling on disposal of the instrument; and

   -  Requiring financial assets to be reclassified where there is a change in an entity’s business model as they are initially classified 
based on: (a) the objective of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and (b) the characteristics of 
contractual cash flows.

	 	 •	 	AASB	124:	Related	Party	Disclosures	(applicable	for	annual	reporting	periods	commencing	on	or	after	1	Jan	2011).

    This Standard removes the requirement for government-related entities to disclose details of all transactions with the government 
and other government-related entities, and clarifies the definition of a ‘related party’ to remove inconsistencies and simplify the 
structure of the Standard. No changes are expected to materially affect the association.

	 	 •	 	AASB	2009-4:	Amendments	to	Australian	Accounting	Standards	arising	from	the	Annual	Improvements	Project	[AASB	2	and	AASB	
138 and Interpretations 9 & 16] (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing from 1 July 2009) and AASB 2009-5: Further 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project [AASB 5, 8, 101, 107, 117, 118, 136 & 
139] (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing from 1 January 2010).

    These Standards detail numerous non-urgent but necessary changes to Accounting Standards arising from the IASB’s annual 
improvements project. No changes are expected to materially affect the association.

	 	 •	 	AASB	2009-12:	Amendments	to	Australian	Accounting	Standards	[AASBs	5,	8,	108,	110,	112,	119,	133,	137,	139,	1023	&	1031	and	
Interpretations 2, 4, 16, 1039 & 1052] (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2011).

    This Standard makes a number of editorial amendments to a range of Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, 
including amendments to reflect changes made to the text of IFRSs by the IASB. The Standard also amends AASB 8 to require entities 
to exercise judgement in assessing whether a government and entities known to be under the control of the government are 
considered a single customer for the purposes of certain operating segment disclosures. No changes are expected to materially 
affect the association.

   The association does not anticipate early adoption of any of the above Australian Accounting Standards.

2. Revenue, Other Income and Expenses  

Note 2010 
$

2009  
$

(A) REVENUE

Operating Grants
Disability Services Commission 16,619,731 14,627,201
Lotterywest

Other

     206,594

     142,018

        25,195

        52,371
Total Operating Grants 16,968,343 14,704,767

(B) DONATIONS, BEQUESTS, FUNDRAISING

Donations      128,976        68,774
Bequests        22,300        33,830
Fundraising      126,333      122,938
Total Donations, Bequests, Fundraising      277,609      225,542

(C) ExPENSES

Finance Charges included in lease payments

Depreciation

Nil

     650,005

Nil

     554,515
Operating lease payments – Land & building        23,467        21,383
Auditors’ remuneration for audit of the financial report        19,787        22,312

(D) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT ExPENSE

Salary and wages 13,272,955 11,602,926
Superannuation contributions   1,181,419   1,017,715
Movement in employee benefits      530,174      388,651
Total Employee Benefits 14,984,548 13,009,292

(E) ACCOMMODATION SUPPORT AND INTENSIVE FAMILY SUPPORT

Direct Care expenses 14,929,966 13,462,823
Household operating expenses   1,665,184   1,416,683
Total Accommodation Support and Intensive Family Support 16,595,150 14,879,506

(F) THERAPY ExPENSES

Therapy support expenses      442,309      284,809
CAEP program      241,077      152,259
Total Therapy Expenses      683,386      437,068

(G) FUNDRAISING ExPENSES

Beer and lobster raffle expenses        81,673        77,304
Other fundraising expenses          1,855           6,518
Total Fundraising Expenses        83,528        83,822

(H) CAPITAL SUBSIDIES

Disability Services Commission      159,246      387,786
Lotterywest      234,754       187,436
Total Capital Subsidies 394,000 575,222
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3. Segment Reporting
  The Association has eight operating segments, as described below. The operating segments reflect the significant activities undertaken by 

the Association to achieve its mission of “enabling people with disabilities to achieve and maintain a valued quality of life as part of an 
accepting community”

 (i)  Accommodation support program involves the provision of residential accommodation options and the provision of the support 
required to enable disabled persons to access accommodation options.

  (ii) Household operations involve the provision of day to day household operating functions.

 (iii)  Recreation and community support program involves the provision of the support required to enable people with disabilities to 
access recreation and community activities.

 (iv)  Therapy support program involves the provision of physiotherapy, occupational therapy, speech therapy and other therapy as 
required to residents. This area also included the Community Aids and Equipment program.

 (v) Program development involves the provision of support required for the expansion of the Association’s activities.

 (vi)  Self funded initiatives are those initiatives undertaken by the Association which are funded predominantly from the Association’s 
resources. These activities include Independent Administration, Creative Development Program, Blue Gum Recreation Centre 
management, Cooke Street house rental and other non recurring projects.

 (vii)  Fundraising involves the collection of voluntary contributions by donations and the organisation of fundraising events to raise funds 
for all programs

 (viii) Other comprises finance expenses, income received to fund capital purchases and depreciation expenses

 MAJOR SOURCE OF FUNDS

  The Association receives a significant part of its funding for its programs from the Disability Services Commission of Western Australia.
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4 Cash and Cash Equivalents
 2010 

$
2009  

$
Cash on hand               950              950
Cash at bank                 24                   0
Term deposits       942,006    1,013,562
Cash Management account       505,743       676,056
Funeral trust account         43,953         43,953
Online investment account    1,774,394       947,055
Residents trust account

Housekeeping accounts
      849,147

        40,700

      846,723

        43,931
Total cash and cash equivalents    4,156,917    3,572,230

  Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates on daily deposit rates. Short term deposits are made for varying periods of between 30 days 
and 90 days depending on the Associations’ cash requirements. These deposits earn interest at market rates.

  A bank guarantee of $21,000 to the Office of Racing and Gaming exists to provide security for the value of prizes in the Beer and Lobster Raffle.

 The Association’s exposure to interest rate risk is disclosed in note 12

5 Trade and Other Receivables

2010 
$

2009  
$

Trade debtors       52,225        35,441
Less: Impairment Provision                0                 0

      52,225        35,441
Prepayments and other accrued income       95,741     151,796
Other debtors

GST Input Tax

        2,503

      54,250

       14,698

       37,695
Total trade and other receivables     204,719      239,631

 CREDIT RISK

  The following table details the association’s receivables exposed to credit risk with ageing analysis and impairment provided thereon. Amounts 
are considered as ‘past due’ when the debt has not been settled within the terms and conditions agreed between the association and the 
member or counterparty to the transaction. Receivables that are past due are assessed for impairment by ascertaining their willingness to pay 
and are provided for where there are specific circumstances indicating that the debt may not be fully repaid to the association. 

Gross Amount 
$

Past due & Impaired 
$

Past Due but Not Impaired (Days Overdue)
Within Trade Terms 

$
31-60 

$
61-90 

$
>90 

$
2010
Trade Debtors 52,225 - 3,135 1,470 1,525 46,095
Other receivables 152,494 - - - - 152,494

Total 204,719 - 3,135 1,470 1,525 198,589

2009
Trade Debtors 35,441 - 3,943 1,998 5,161 24,339 
Other Receivables 204,190 - 204,190
Total 239,631 - 3,943 1,998 5,161 228,529

 Collateral held as security - No collateral is held as security for any of the trade and other receivable balances.
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 FINANCIAL ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

2010 
$

2009 
$

Trade and Other Receivables
- Total Current     204,719     239,631

6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Land 
$

Buildings 
$

Plant and 
Equipment 

$
Furniture 

$

Motor 
Vehicles 

$
TOTAL 

$

Gross Carrying Amount- Cost
Balance at 30 June 2008 522,672 2,802,476 1,072,022 354,561 2,068,931 6,820,662
Additions - -      82,871 -    958,942 1,041,813
Disposals - -    (497,269) (342,065)    (503,282) (1,342,616)
Balance at 30 June 2009 522,672 2,802,476    657,624   12,496   2,524,591 6,519,859
Additions -      22,253    235,095 -    861,928 1,119,276
Disposals - - - -    (753,856)    (753,856)
Balance at 30 June 2010 522,672 2,824,729    892,719   12,496  2,632,663 6,885,279

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 30 June 2008 -    (514,594)    (703,532)  (354,561)    (901,452) (2,474,139)
Disposals - -    497,279 342,065    263,934 1,103,278
Depreciation Expense -      (70,063)    (105,014) -    (379,438)    (554,515)
Balance at 30 June 2009 -    (584,657)    (311,267)   (12,496) (1,016,956) (1,925,376)
Disposals - - - -     404,981    404,981
Depreciation Expense -      (70,109)    (158,552) -    (421,344)    (650,005)
Balance at 30 June 2010 -    (654,766)    (469,819)   (12,496) (1,033,319) (2,170,400)

Net Book Value
As at 30 June 2009 522,672 2,217,819    346,357 - 1,507,635 4,594,483
 As at 30 June 2010 522,672 2,169,963    422,900 - 1,599,344 4,714,879

 The Association currently has no equipment or motor vehicles under finance lease agreements 

7 Trade Creditors and Other Payables
2010 

$
2009  

$

Trade creditors       209,002       233,864
Residents Trust Funds       857,168       846,723
Other creditors         26,949       109,581
GST Payable         36,739         23,445
Accruals       493,248       395,181
Financial liabilities as trade and other payables 1,623,106 1,608,794

 The Association’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade creditors and other payables is disclosed in Note 12

8 Deferred Income
2010 

$
2009  

$

Disability Services Commission 370,347 359,040
Other grants        10,000        34,211
Income received in advance        16,417          3,157

396,764 396,408

9 Borrowings

2010 
$

2009  
$

NON-CURRENT
Loans 0   83,378
Total Borrowings 0   83,378

  A mortgage loan of $111,000 was taken out with the Commonwealth Bank of Australia to fund the purchase of land at Robins Road, 
Kalamunda. The land was used in a joint venture with the Ministry of Housing to accommodate five residents. The loan was paid out in full 
in the financial year ending 30 June 2010 ($2009 $83,378 balance)

 The Association currently has no obligations under finance leases

 BANK FACILITIES

  An overdraft facility with the Commonwealth Bank of Australia of $30,000 (2009 - $30,000) was available to the Association at the end of the 
financial year 2010. As of that date $nil (2009 - nil) of that facility was in use.

  A drawdown facility of $1,000,000 (2009 - $1,000,000) was available to the Association at the end of the financial year with the National 
Australia Bank. As at this date $80,000 (2009 - nil) was in use. An offset account operates in conjunction with this draw down facility in order 
to minimise interest charges. As at this date $80,000 (2009 nil) was held in this account.

10 Provisions
2010 

$
2009  

$
(A) CURRENT

Long service leave      271,209      168,825
Accrued days off      327,973      350,686
Annual leave   1,423,713   1,123,189
Roberta Mead Scholarship             866          4,866
Staff Awards          5,000 -

  2,028,761   1,647,566
(B) NON-CURRENT

Long service leave      581,834      488,974

(C) MOVEMENTS IN PROVISIONS

Balance at 1 July 2009   2,136,540   1,789,804
Charge for the year   2,545,095   2,078,073
Utilised during the year  (2,071,040)  (1,731,337)
Balance at 30 June 2010   2,610,595   2,136,540

 

11 Reserves and Retained Earnings
 (a) Retained earnings represents the funds of the Association that are not designated for particular purposes 

 (b) Reserves comprise funds set aside for the replacement of Nulsen Community vehicles.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (cont..) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (cont..)



58 59

12 Financial Risk Management
  The Association’s financial instruments mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents and, accounts receivable and payable). In addition the 

Association has various financial assets and liabilities including amounts receivable in respect of services provided and amounts payable to 
trade and other creditors.

 2010 
$

2009  
$

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,156,917 3,572,230
Trade and other receivables   204,719    239,631
Available for sale financial assets           207           207
Total financial assets 4,361,843 3,812,068

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables 1,623,106 1,608,794
Deferred Income    396,764    396,408
Borrowings -      83,378
Total Financial Liabilities 2,019,870 2,088,580

 Financial risk Management Policies

  The Board of Management has overall responsibility for risk management, including risks associated with the Association’s financial 
instruments. Risk management policies are established to monitor the risks and adherence to limits. The Board Finance Committee is 
responsible for monitoring investment policies.

 Specific Financial risk exposure and Management

 The main risks arising from the Association’s financial instruments are a liquidity risk, credit risk and interest rate risk.

 (A) LIQUIDITY RISK

   Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association will not be able to fund its obligations as they fall due. The Association manages liquidity risk 
by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that adequate liquid funds are available to meet normal operating expenses.

  The table below reflects an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities.

   Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management’s expectation as to the timing of realisation. Actual timing may therefore 
differ from that disclosed. The timing of cash flows presented in the table to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual 
settlement dates.

Within 1 Year 1 to 5 Years Over 5 Years Total
2010 

$
2009 

$
2010 

$
2009 

$
2010 

$
2009 

$
2010 

$
2009 

$
Financial Liabilities due for payment
Trade and Other Payables 1,623,106 1,608,794 - - - - 1,623,106 1,608,794
Deferred Income    396,764    396,408 - - - -    396,764    396,408
Borrowings                0      83,378 - - - - -      83,378
Total contractual outflows 2,019,870 2,088,580 - - - - 2,019,870 2,088,580
Total expected outflows 2,019,870 2,088,580 - - - - 2,019,870 2,088,580

Financial assets  
- cash flows realisable
Cash and cash equivalents 4,156,917 3,572,230 - - - 4,156,917 3,572,230
Trade and other receivables    204,719    239,631 - - -    204,719    239,631
Available for sale financial assets - - - -            207            207            207            207
Total anticipated inflows 4,361,636 3,811,861 - -            207            207 4,361,843 3,812,068
Net (outflow)/inflow on financial 
instruments 4,361,636 3,811,861 - -            207            207 4,361,843 3,812,068

No financial assets have been pledged as security for any financial liability.

 (B) CREDIT RISK

   Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Association if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations.  The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the Statement of Financial Position net of any provisions for 
losses, represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.

   Credit risk is managed through maintaining procedures (such as utilisation of systems for the approval, granting and removal of credit 
limits) ensuring, to the extent possible, that counterparties to transactions are of sound credit worthiness.

 (C) INTEREST RATE RISK

  The exposure to interest rate risk for each class of financial asset and financial liability is set out below:

  (i)  Cash comprises non-interest bearing cash floats of $41,650    (2009 - $44,881) and cash management accounts and term deposits 
comprising $4,102,974 (2009 - $3,527,349) bearing interest rates of   3.4% to 5.5% (2009- 1.00% to 4.00%). Investments are fixed for 
periods varying from 30 days to 90 days, except the funeral fund deposit which is fixed for 6 months. Cash held in trust for 
Independent Administration clients are not included in the above as the interest on these accounts belongs to the clients, not the 
Association.

  (ii) Receivables are non interest bearing.

  (iii) Payables are non interest bearing.

  (iv) The Association currently has no interest bearing liabilities

  Sensitivity analysis

   The following table illustrates sensitivities to the associations exposures to changes in interest rates. The table indicates the impact on 
how profit and equity values reported at the end of the reporting period would have been affected by the changes in the relevant risk 
variable that management considers to be reasonably possible. These sensitivities assume that the movement in a particular variable is 
independent of other variables.

 Profit Equity
$ $

year ended 30 june 2010
+/- 1% in interest rates +/- 47,553 +/- 47,553

year ended 30 june 2009
+/- 1% in interest rates +/- 65,421 +/- 65,421

   No sensitivity analysis has been performed for price or foreign exchange risk, as the association is not exposed to these risks.

  Net Fair values

   The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities can be compared to their carrying values as presented in the statement of 
financial position. Fair values are those amounts at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, 
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

13 Cash Flow Information

2010 
$

2009  
$

Reconciliation of net surplus for the year to net cash flows from operating activities.

Surplus / (deficit) from ordinary activities    264,826    434,321
Profit on disposal of non-current assets      (42,556)      (60,880)
Capital Funding    (394,000)    (575,222)
Depreciation and amortisation expense    650,005    554,515
Changes in net assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease  in current receivables      34,912        1,755
Increase/(Decrease) in current payables      14,311    648,802
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions    474,056    346,735
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities           356    225,747
Net Cash provided by operating activities 1,001,910 1,575,773
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14 Operating Lease Commitments 
  The Association has entered into a lease agreement with the Department for Housing for the rental of residential houses for the 

accommodations program. Future minimum rentals payable under this agreement as at the reporting date are:

2010 
$

2009  
$

Within one year 21,600 21,118
After one year but not more than five years
Greater than five years

21,600 21,118

  The property lease commitment is a cancellable operating lease with a 1-year term, with rent payable monthly in advance. The lease 
agreement requires the minimum lease payments shall be increased by nil per annum. The lease is currently under review with the Ministry 
of Housing.

15 Burton Street Site
  Funding of $512,000 was received from the Disability Services Commission in 1996/97 to enable the purchase of premises at 28(a) Burton 

Street, Cannington.  Nulsen Haven Association (Inc) holds 100% equity in the site; Disability Services Commission holds a caveat over the 
property which ensures that the site will only be used to provide appropriate services.  A further $149,100 was received from the Lotteries 
Commission to enable a refit of the new administration site in the year ending 30 June 2002.

  In December 1999, $85,000 was received from the Lotteries Commission to purchase a second Strata Title on the 28(b) Burton St site for use 
as a Staff Training Facility.  The Lotteries Commission holds a ten year caveat over the property.  The caveat expires in December 2009.

  In June 2006 a third Strata Title on the 28(B) Burton St site was purchased from Extrim. This was funded by Nulsen Haven Association Inc.   
Nulsen Haven has completed work on renovations to this property. The Lotteries Commission contributed $800,000 towards these costs. 

 A Deed of Trust has been drawn up in relation to this work with the following terms:

 (i)  The Trustee (Nulsen Haven) holds the property on trust for itself and the Lotterywest Commission as tenants in common in respect to 
the number of undivided shares as specified in the Deed schedule.

 (ii) The undivided share to the Lotterywest Commission will be 920,000/2,000,000.

 (iii)  The term of the Deed is 20 years. At the end of the term (2026) the Lotteries Commission’s beneficial interest in the property will revert 
to Nulsen Haven Association (Inc).

 The written down value of this property as at 30 June 2010 was $1,570,118 (2009 - $1,613,501).

16 Joint Venture Properties
  The properties at Dillon Place and Rosella Place were purchased through joint venture funding with the Department of Housing and Works 

(formerly Homeswest), and the property at St George’s Avenue through joint venture funding with Department of Housing and Works and 
the Lotteries Commission.  Nulsen Haven Association (Inc)’s equity value in the three properties is held as a percentage of the historical cost 
value of the properties.  Should any of the properties be sold in the future, Nulsen Haven Association (Inc)’s would receive a percentage of 
the final resale value.   These percentages are: Dillon Place (43.86%), Rosella Place (35%) and St George’s Avenue (81.06%).  Caveat’s are 
currently in place over these properties registering the interests of both Ministry of Housing and Lotterywest where applicable.

17 Independent Administration Trust Accounts
  The Association currently holds bank accounts in trust for bookkeeping and accounting services clients within the Independent 

Administration service. These accounts are used to make payments on behalf of the clients.   All transactions are authorised by the client 
and the Association cannot initiate a transaction or decide how to use the funds in these accounts. The client decides how much is to be 
retained in the account at any point in time, and has access to the electronic banking system to enable them to monitor the account. The 
bank accounts are included in the financial reports of the individual client. While the Association are the sole bank signatories it is for 
clerical purposes only and they do not have any control over the use of the funds. Consequently the accounts do not appear in the 
Association’s financial returns.

 Funds held at 30 June 2010 total $4,499,210 (2009 $2,239,753)

18 Related Party Transactions
 (a) Board members

   Board members in office during the year are disclosed in the Board of Management report that accompanies these 
financial statements.

 (b) Board members compensation

  Board members act in an honorary capacity and receive no compensation for their services.

 (c) Key management personnel compensation

Name Position
2010 

$
2009 

$

Gordon Trewern Chief Executive Officer
Graham Holman Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Stephan Van Vlijmen

Karen Malyon

Karen Hanlon

Kerry Madaffari

Heather Blyth

Cindy Wieman

Michele Hodgson

Director of Accommodation

Payroll Manager

Office Manager

HR Manager

Senior Accountant

Clinical Manager

Manager Nulsen Community

Salaries 610,682 534,344
Fringe Benefits (Grossed up value) 292,840 268,366
Superannuation 92,137 82,499

Total compensation 995,659 885,209

19 Auditors’ Remuneration

2010 
$

2009  
$

Remuneration of the auditor of the association for:

- Audit of the financial report 19,787 18,600
- Other assurance services           0           0
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In the opinion of the Board of Management, the financial report as set out on pages 40 to 61:

 (a)  Presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Nulsen Haven Association (Inc) as at 30 June 2010 and its performance for the 
year ended on that date in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations) of 
the Australian Accounting Standards Board; and,

 (b)  At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that Nulsen Haven Association (Inc) will be able to pay its debts as 
and when they fall due.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Management and is signed for and on behalf of the Board by: 

Aart Plug 
Chairman

Dated this 28th day of September 2010.

Statement by the Board of Management Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of Nulsen Haven Association (Inc)

 

Report on the Financial Report
We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial report of Nulsen Haven Association (Inc), which comprises the statement of 
financial position as at 30 June 2010, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the Board of Management’s 
declaration.

Board of Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Report
The Board of Management of Nulsen Haven Association (Inc) is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Associations Incorporation 
Act 1987. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; 
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 1, the Board of Management also state that the 
preparation of the financial statement is in accordance with the Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS).

Auditor’s Responsibilty
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian professional accounting bodies.

Auditor’s Opinion
In our opinion, the general purpose financial report of Nulsen Haven Association (Inc) gives a true and fair view of the Association’s financial 
position as at 30 June 2010 and of its performance for the year ended on the date; and also complies with Australian Accounting Standards 
(including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Associations Incorporation Act 1987 (WA).

William Buck Audit (WA) Pty Ltd 
Registered Company Auditor No: 339150 
ABN 67 125 012 124

Stephen K Breihl 
Director

Dated this 29th September 2010
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Lizzie Gaturu
Martin Gaturu
Samuel Gaynor
Hayley Geer
Mary George Aloysius
Marion Gianatti

Debbie Gibbons
Rachael Gibbs
Craig Gibson
Jay Gill
Naydene Gillham
Kaley Golding
Sukhdev Singh Golen
Jen Gouvignon
Matti Graves
Sue Gravner
Henrietta Gray
Jack Greenway
Elizabeth Griffiths
Mary Grylls
Eamon Guilfoile
Leanne Hall
Sarah Hall
Sheneise Hall
Anwen Halliday
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Kirri-Lee Harper
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Nulsen acknowledges the support of its major sponsors and business partners

A Sincere Thank You! Our wonderful staff and residents 2009/10
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